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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. My name is Joe Addabbo. I chair the

          4  Committee for Civil Service and Labor. I want to

          5  welcome you all here today to what we call the "Red

          6  Room." And normally the Red Room is used for press

          7  conferences but today it's used as a Committee

          8  hearing room, so, therefore, on today nobody could

          9  question the productivity of the City Council today.

         10  We are in here because every other room is booked.

         11  We have Council Chambers entertaining a hearing on

         12  the New Jersey Nets' site, the Committee Room is

         13  being occupied. We have two hearing rooms at 250

         14  Broadway across the street, they are booked, so we

         15  are here. Starbucks, Citibank on the corner, there

         16  is no room at the Inn, so therefore we are here, and

         17  that is a good sign for the City Council, as we are

         18  being very productive today.

         19                 Today's hearing for the Civil Service

         20  and Labor Committee, is going to be broken down into

         21  two parts. The first part today we will have our

         22  first hearing on Intro. 313, which is regarding the

         23  reporting of workplace injuries and illnesses.

         24  Basically 313 is intended to streamline the data

         25  collection and reporting process for injuries and
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          2  illnesses sustained in the workplace. And it would

          3  also improve safety by requiring agencies to

          4  regularly document specific information about

          5  workplace incidents.

          6                 That would be part one today, and

          7  we'll start that right away.

          8                 The second part of this Committee

          9  hearing will be examining the One-In-Three Rule and

         10  the promotion and hiring of those civil service

         11  workers. So, that will be part two of today's

         12  hearing.

         13                 At this point I'd like to thank our

         14  staff who puts these committee hearings together, my

         15  Legislative Aid Steve Adenesio, to my right, our

         16  Legal Counsel Tom Curry.  I would also like to thank

         17  Joan Povolny, the Policy Analyst and Daniel Turiago,

         18  the Financial Analyst of the Committee.

         19                 Intro. 313, a bill which would amend

         20  the Administrative Code in the City of New York, in

         21  relation to requiring all City agencies to record

         22  and report information regarding workplace injuries

         23  and illnesses.

         24                 The City is paying out approximately

         25  $140 million annually in direct cost for workers
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          2  compensation, and probably two to three times that

          3  amount when indirect costs, such as lost

          4  productivity, recruitment and training of

          5  replacement workers are taken into account.

          6                 Intro. 313 would improve safety of

          7  City workplaces by requiring all City agencies to

          8  regularly document specific information with respect

          9  to employee injuries and illnesses.

         10                 Information from these records would

         11  be compiled into reports that would help the City

         12  take necessary precautions to reduce the number and

         13  severity of workplace injuries and illnesses, which

         14  in turn would help save money and increase

         15  productivity, as well as more effectively administer

         16  and manage workers compensation and line of duty

         17  claims.

         18                 At this point, I would like to

         19  introduce my colleagues who are here today, a member

         20  of this Committee, Council Member Sara Gonzalez.

         21  Sara, thank you very much for being here.

         22                 And the person who introduced this

         23  Intro. 313, which I am thankful for, and I am also

         24  thankful for being a co-sponsor along with Council

         25  Member Jim Gennaro, so I thank Council Member Jim
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          2  Gennaro for being here today, and I would ask that

          3  he make a statement at this point.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman.

          6                 Thank you for your great work on

          7  Intro. 313. Thank you for sponsoring it, along with

          8  myself and 20 something, I guess --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Twenty

         11  something other members of the Council. We have

         12  broad-based support for it, so thank you for

         13  bringing it to a hearing so quickly.

         14                 We all know that workplace injuries

         15  and illnesses cause real human suffering within the

         16  City's workforce.

         17                 We also know that workplace injuries

         18  and illnesses result in real economic hardship for

         19  these workers and for the City.

         20                 However, what we don't know, in a

         21  uniformed comprehensive way, is where, why and how

         22  these injuries and illnesses are happening within

         23  the City's workplace. Lack of basic knowledge about

         24  high-risk jobs and unsafe working conditions is

         25  simply unacceptable and it must change, and change
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          2  it will, with the passage of Intro. 313, the

          3  workplace safety bill.

          4                 This landmarked legislation will

          5  dramatically improve the safety of our workplaces.

          6                 It will mean that City agencies, for

          7  the first time ever, uniformly and comprehensively

          8  document the injuries and illnesses that happen in

          9  the workplace.

         10                 This information is necessary to

         11  identify the location of hazardous jobs and the

         12  sources of workplace safety risks for City

         13  employees.

         14                 Knowledge is power. After we find out

         15  which jobs are high risk and cause injury, we can

         16  make sure that appropriate actions are taken to make

         17  sure that high risk jobs are made safer, so that we

         18  could protect the City's employees, and ultimately

         19  save the City money.

         20                 As the Chairman said, it's $140

         21  million a year in workers comp and direct cost and

         22  the indirect cost would far exceed that.

         23                 So, we all deserve a safe and healthy

         24  workplace, and I'm proud to be a lead sponsor on the

         25  workplace safety bill, because I know that when this
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          2  legislation become law, we will have to take a huge

          3  step forward in providing a safe, healthy workplace

          4  for City employees.

          5                 Again, none of this would be possible

          6  without the good work of Chairman Joe Addabbo, and

          7  the members of this Committee, an the staff has made

          8  this hearing possible.

          9                 Also the witnesses and people who

         10  have worked with us so hard in the bill,

         11  particularly Joel Shufro of NYCOSH, you've been very

         12  helpful in getting this bill together for us. They

         13  really led the fight for us. It wouldn't be here

         14  today without Joel Shufro and all the good folks

         15  from NYCOSH, UFT, DC 37, many other unions are part

         16  of this effort and I thank them in a special way.

         17                 Also, my own staff, who worked so

         18  long and hard on this. My Chief of Staff Peter

         19  Washburn, and my Legislative Aid Kareen Jean-Pierre

         20  for her good work on this, as well.

         21                 So, Mr. Chairman, once again I thank

         22  you and I am grateful for the opportunity to be here

         23  and participate.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member
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          2  Gennaro, thank you very much for introducing this

          3  important piece of legislation. Again, thank you for

          4  asking me to be a co-sponsor and it was my pleasure,

          5  and I appreciate you being here and obviously

          6  hearing the witnesses.

          7                 Before I do call up the first

          8  witness, I just want to read in part the letter we

          9  received from the Mayor's Administration. It's a

         10  letter of opposition to 313, and basically what

         11  happens is we will read again this in part, the

         12  entire letter will be put into the record.

         13                 This is the first hearing on 313, so

         14  we are hopeful that we can, again, iron out any

         15  possible differences that we may have with the

         16  Administration and ultimately pass a very solid and

         17  strong Intro. 313. But again, in part, the Mayor's

         18  Administration does write a letter of objection

         19  basically saying the Administration has several

         20  major areas of concern about this bill.

         21                 "First, I am advised that provisions

         22  of this bill are duplicative or very firm provisions

         23  of state law which already address this subject

         24  area, namely workplace injuries and their prevention

         25  and thus there may be a strong legal argument
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          2  against this bill, based on preemption by state law.

          3                 We believe that this bill

          4  inappropriately bestows new tasks on the two

          5  agencies designated in this bill, namely the Law

          6  Department and OMB.

          7                 OMB is the Mayor's primary advisor on

          8  fiscal issues and is also responsible for the

          9  preparation, monitoring and control of the City's

         10  budget and four-year financial plans.

         11                 As noted above, the requirements of

         12  this bill are duplicative. Virtually all of the

         13  information sought is already required by the

         14  Workers Compensation Law, is reported to the state

         15  and is therefore available.

         16                 The Comptroller already compiles the

         17  type of information concerning expenses paid that is

         18  sought as our proposed law.

         19                 Requiring the Workers Compensation

         20  Division to both furnish data and additionally

         21  perform a risk management function only would

         22  require tasks that such unit is not designated to

         23  handle, but it would require additional staff at

         24  both the Law Department and OMB representing an

         25  unfunded mandate."

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 Again, if anybody would like a copy

          3  of this, I'm sure we can get you copies of the

          4  Administration letters of objection, which, again,

          5  is part of the record.

          6                 At this point I'd like to call on our

          7  first witness. Please step to the front row. Is that

          8  what we're doing, right?

          9                 Please step into the front row, Joel

         10  Shufro, from NYCOSH.

         11                 Please state your name for the

         12  record, and begin your testimony.

         13                 MR. SHUFRO: My name is Joel Shufro.

         14  I'm the Executive Director of the New York Committee

         15  for Occupational Safety and Health, a non-profit

         16  coalition of 250 local unions and 400 health

         17  professionals, legal experts, rank and file workers,

         18  in the New York Metropolitan area.

         19                 Our organization is dedicated to

         20  preventing workplace injuries and illnesses and to

         21  every worker's right to a safe and healthful

         22  workplace. And we have a 25-year history of

         23  providing quality safety and training to workers,

         24  community organizations and employers throughout the

         25  New York Metropolitan area around the issues of
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          2  workplace safety and health and workers

          3  compensation.

          4                 I'm here to urge the enactment of

          5  Intro. 313, which will require the City to produce

          6  an annual report on the numbers and costs of City

          7  employees who suffer work-related injuries or

          8  illnesses. This proposed legislation is currently

          9  co-sponsored I believe by 32 members of the Council.

         10                 The proposed legislation will rectify

         11  what is an unacceptable situation.

         12                 According to the letter that we

         13  received from the Corporation Counsel's Office in

         14  response to a Freedom of Information Request we made

         15  in about 2001, 2002, the City claims it cannot

         16  produce reports detailing numbers or costs of

         17  workplace injuries and illness by agency, job title

         18  or diagnosis.

         19                 Several of this public sector unions

         20  who will testify later have requested such

         21  information through normal labor management

         22  channels, and I have also been told that the City

         23  does not maintain such records.

         24                 By requiring the City to monitor

         25  document and make available to the public
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          2  statistical data on employee injury and illnesses,

          3  and their costs in City agencies, it becomes

          4  possible to identify the location of high-risk jobs,

          5  the nature and sources of safety and health hazards

          6  encountered by City employees, and to develop

          7  programs to reduce the number and severity of

          8  workplace injuries to the lowest level, to promote

          9  safe and healthful work conditions in the workplace.

         10                 Without such data, it is impossible

         11  for the City to develop an effective injury and

         12  illness reduction program.

         13                 Workplace injuries and illnesses

         14  result in untold human misery and suffering. They

         15  destroy families, force workers to sell their homes,

         16  create financial hardship, which can result in

         17  children being prevented from going to college or

         18  forcing those in college to drop out, and in extreme

         19  cases, forces the injured worker, and/or his or her

         20  family onto welfare.

         21                 The workplace injuries in the City

         22  reflect a burden on the City. It is estimated that

         23  the City spends more than 156 million, not 140

         24  million per year, on workers' compensation costs.

         25  The cost of workplace injury and illness are
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          2  exponentially higher if indirect costs of workplace

          3  injuries and illness are taken into account.

          4                 In fact, what we have seen when we

          5  started this process to get the bill, the costs were

          6  at 140 million, which is about three years ago.

          7  What's been going on, even though we've had a

          8  decline in the number of accidents and illnesses on

          9  the job, the cost of workers compensation, even

         10  without a benefit increase, has gone up $5 million a

         11  year in the City.

         12                 The bill will go a step further to

         13  rationalize the City's reporting of costs of workers

         14  who are injured on the job.

         15                 As you know, injured workers in the

         16  City are covered either by the workers compensation

         17  or line of duty pay. Because we have two different

         18  systems, which have different benefits, it is even

         19  more important to quantify what the City pays for

         20  workplace injuries and illnesses. The bill requires

         21  the City to collect and publish data of workplace

         22  injuries under both systems, thereby giving us a

         23  picture of the total cost of workers compensation to

         24  the City.

         25                 Most cities throughout the country
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          2  like New York are self-insured. But most cities do,

          3  as larger corporations do, employ a risk manager to

          4  attempt to reduce costs. We had a risk manager in

          5  New York City and that position was eliminated

          6  during the Giuliani Administration.

          7                 In the private sector, we know that

          8  many companies have been able to reduce accidents

          9  and injury, saving literally millions of dollars.

         10                 Companies such as Verizon, Coca Cola,

         11  Texas Instruments, Intel and Xerox, have introduced

         12  programs designed to reduce workers' compensation

         13  costs resulting in a savings of literally millions

         14  of dollars.

         15                 In my testimony I give you examples

         16  of companies that have literally reduced workers

         17  compensation costs by millions and millions of

         18  dollars, and increased productivity of workers by

         19  reducing down time and providing them with safer

         20  employment.

         21                 Injury and illness statistics for

         22  public sector workers are dramatically higher than

         23  those in the private sector.

         24                 This is because the jobs of public

         25  sector workers are dangerous. Highway repair
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          2  workers, hospital workers, prison guards, mental

          3  health orderlies, pesticide applicators, to name

          4  some of the job titles, have rates which exceed the

          5  average frequency rate of workplace injuries and

          6  illnesses.

          7                 Passage of Intro. 313 is a win/win

          8  proposition. It provides the first step, first and

          9  necessary step in reducing unnecessary workplace

         10  injuries and illnesses. At the same time it provides

         11  the basis for realizing significant productivity

         12  gains, upon which, in my estimation, both labor and

         13  management can agree it is good public health, it is

         14  good government and good business.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Shufro,

         16  thank you for your time and testimony today.

         17                 Again, just your opinion with regard

         18  to the Mayor's objection saying that we already have

         19  a procedure or a law in place, it's basically a

         20  state law, and they have a section there for

         21  recordkeeping, your opinion about the process that's

         22  already there and why it doesn't help us at all with

         23  what we're trying to do here, and that Intro. 313 is

         24  required?

         25                 MR. SHUFRO: There is a different
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          2  system for collecting information about accidents

          3  and injuries, which is done under the State law.

          4  It's the DOSH 900 form, I believe it's called -- SH

          5  900, which requires recording of injuries and gives

          6  a breakdown. This is done sporadically throughout

          7  the City agencies. There is not a report. But it

          8  doesn't, in any way, deal with the cost of workers

          9  compensation. It is a totally separate sort of

         10  system, and the definitions of injuries and

         11  illnesses are very different than what are found

         12  under the Workers Compensation Law.

         13                 It is not true, as pointed out in the

         14  memo, that the information requested under this law

         15  is sent to the State. It is not true. They are not

         16  required to do so, and it is not available from the

         17  State. And, so, there is no preemption issue that's

         18  at stake here, and the two systems are separate.

         19                 The other system is important also,

         20  and would that it were uniformly enforced by the

         21  City today. But this would allow us to get the cost

         22  of workers compensation, which is different than

         23  what is recorded in the SH 900 form.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, so, you

         25  don't see that there is a conflict with Intros. 313
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          2  and the State law that currently exist?

          3                 MR. SHUFRO: Absolutely not.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, great.

          5                 MR. SHUFRO: Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any other

          7  questions from colleagues?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Council Member

         10  Gennaro.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman.

         13                 Thank you, Joel, for all of your hard

         14  work throughout the years and sort of staying the

         15  course with us to make sure that we got this

         16  launched, and so we're happy to do that.

         17                 I'm wondering if I could ask you to

         18  give a thorough review to the letter that's been put

         19  forward by the Administration, and to the extent

         20  that you can -- would it be okay to develop sort of

         21  like a thoughtful written rebuttal to that?

         22                 MR. SHUFRO: We would be delighted.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: It would be

         24  helpful, I think, to us if NYCOSH could, because in

         25  our discussions with our colleagues here at the
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          2  Council, and with the Administration, we would like

          3  to have the ability to have that available to us.

          4                 MR. SHUFRO: We would be very happy to

          5  do so. And I have to say, I'm somewhat stunned by

          6  the letter, because I cannot think of a business

          7  that pays out 159 million, $156 million a year, and

          8  not be able to detail where those costs are incurred

          9  and develop a program to reduce them.

         10                 It seems to me that this is, any

         11  organization which has these sorts of costs, or

         12  encounter these sorts of costs, would want to be

         13  able to figure out by Department, by job title,

         14  where they're occurring and work to reduce them.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And hopefully

         16  we will, as a result of your work and the good work

         17  of the people at NYCOSH. So, thank you. Thank you,

         18  Joel.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Gennaro. Council Member Gennaro.

         22                 Mr. Shufro, thank you very much. And

         23  just to let you know, and the audience here,

         24  basically we had a fiscal impact statement done by

         25  the Committee, and, you know, what would be the cost
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          2  to the City with regards to Intro. 313, and there is

          3  no cost. So, according to our financial analyst,

          4  there is no cost to the City if we do go through

          5  with Intro. 313.

          6                 Obviously no cost to implement it,

          7  and, obviously, a savings if it was to be

          8  implemented. So, I don't see anything wrong with

          9  obviously Intro. 313. But, again, Mr. Shufro, thank

         10  you very much for your time and testimony today.

         11                 MR. SHUFRO: Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The next

         13  individual to give testimony, Mr. Lawrence D'Addona,

         14  from UFT, United Federation of Teachers.

         15                 Mr. D'Addona, thank you very much for

         16  being here.

         17                 MR. D'ADDONA: You're welcome. Good

         18  afternoon. My name is Lawrence D'Addona, UFT Special

         19  Representative. I'm testifying on behalf of Randi

         20  Weingarten, President of the United Federation of

         21  Teachers, which represents approximately 100,000

         22  employees in New York City public schools.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         24  testify today on the issue of workplace injuries and

         25  illnesses and their impact on UFT members.
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          2                 Approximately 80,000 of our members,

          3  including teachers and secretaries are covered by

          4  injury in the line of duty, and over 20,000,

          5  including paraprofessionals, occupational therapists

          6  and physical therapists are covered by workers

          7  compensation.

          8                 The UFT strongly supports the New

          9  York City Council, Intro No. 313 bill to require all

         10  City agencies to record and report information

         11  regarding workplace injuries and illnesses.

         12                 Every day we see the human toll

         13  workplace injuries and illnesses take on our

         14  members, and the real tragedy is such injuries and

         15  illnesses are, for the most part, preventable.

         16                 We need this bill because existing

         17  laws and regulations have failed to convince our

         18  employer, the New York City Department of Education,

         19  to take all of the steps needed to make schools

         20  safe.

         21                 City agencies, which the Department

         22  of Education considers itself, are already required

         23  to record data regarding workplace injuries and

         24  illnesses.

         25                 Over the years the union has noticed
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          2  a pattern of rising accidents, assault and injuries

          3  through internal union reports and anecdotal

          4  evidence.

          5                 However, this pattern was never

          6  reflected in the uniform reporting of the Department

          7  of Education or workers compensation.

          8                 The UFT quickly came to learn that

          9  there are many reasons that injured workers do not

         10  report. This includes a complicated and a

         11  bureaucratic reporting process, discouragement and

         12  in some cases intimidation by the employer and the

         13  lack of knowledge about how to go about reporting.

         14                 Reporting on the monetary costs of

         15  injury and illness claims, whether injury in the

         16  line of duty or workers compensation, is one of the

         17  best ways to track injuries and illnesses in the

         18  workplace.

         19                 With such data, high-risk

         20  environments and work tasks can be targeted and the

         21  effectiveness of prevention strategies can be more

         22  readily assessed.

         23                 I'd like to describe some of these

         24  high-risk environments and work tasks affecting

         25  paraprofessional teachers and secretaries.
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          2                 Paraprofessionals provide services to

          3  students by assisting teachers in a variety of

          4  classroom settings, including working with special

          5  education populations.

          6                 An assignment with far greater

          7  occupational safety and health risks of most concern

          8  to paraprofessionals are the problems faced when

          9  working with "medically fragile" students in need of

         10  complex and sophisticated medical assistance.

         11                 Paraprofessionals in these classes

         12  are required to perform job duties similar to those

         13  performed by a nurse, or nurse's aide in a hospital

         14  or nursing setting. They clean, feed and diaper

         15  students, as well as lift them and assist them in

         16  going to the bathroom.

         17                 Paraprofessionals routinely report to

         18  us that they consider assault and accidents to be

         19  part of their job. This culture of acceptance is

         20  part of the indoctrination of this segment of the

         21  workforce. If they are smacked, kicked, slapped,

         22  stabbed or suffer severe back strain from lifting

         23  and transferring their limited mobility students,

         24  they are told this is part of their job.

         25                 In surveys conducted, approximately
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          2  half of the paras report they are assaulted, and

          3  about a third report they are repeatedly injured on

          4  the job. Yet, less than half of one percent ever

          5  report these incidents.

          6                 A para in a Manhattan school was

          7  assigned to work with a student who used a

          8  wheelchair and weighed 250 pounds. The student was

          9  paralyzed from the waist down and also in one arm.

         10  She required toileting care. At the time the para

         11  was given the assignment, she had no training in how

         12  to provide proper care for this student. She

         13  informed the principal who passed on the information

         14  to the Supervisor of Education Services in her

         15  district. The supervisor told the paraprofessional

         16  that instead of receiving training from the

         17  Department of Education, she would receive toileting

         18  instructions from the student's mother.

         19                 Thinking there was nowhere else to

         20  turn, she received an informal 15-minute lesson from

         21  the mother and nothing more.

         22                 In order for the student to go to the

         23  bathroom, the paraprofessional was expected to move

         24  the 250 pound student from the wheelchair to a

         25  special seat that the para had to attach to the
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          2  toilet. At this point the para was expected to

          3  change the student's diapers.

          4                 During her first day working with the

          5  student she discovered the girls' bathroom was not

          6  wheelchair accessible, so they had to use the boys'

          7  bathroom. Even worse, the para discovered the

          8  wheelchair slid back when she attempted to begin the

          9  toileting. As a result, another paraprofessional was

         10  assigned to assist by holding the wheelchair in

         11  place. No one was assigned to help the para lift the

         12  student, and change her diaper.

         13                 It is no surprise that on the third

         14  day of her new assignment, the student fell on top

         15  of the para. She has permanent injuries to her back

         16  and pelvis and is unlikely she will be able to bear

         17  children. The para was only 21 years old at the

         18  time.

         19                 Secretaries. The majority of the

         20  1,200 school buildings in New York City public

         21  school system are more than 50 years old and the

         22  offices were not designed for accommodating new

         23  technology. The predominant problems in many school

         24  offices are lack of space, poor work station design

         25  and inefficient set-up of equipment and furniture.
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          2                 Computers are bolted on the right or

          3  left side of the desk, forcing secretaries to work

          4  on a twist while viewing  the monitor.

          5                 Such positions cause neck, shoulder

          6  and lower back muscle fatigue, and fatigue and

          7  strain and frequent headaches.

          8                 Secretaries often compound the

          9  muscular skeletal strain by cradling the phone

         10  between one ear and hunched up shoulder while doing

         11  other tasks, such as typing at the keyboard.

         12                 There are no keyboard platforms or

         13  trays, so the secretaries must work with their

         14  wrists bent, often leaning on the sharp, hard edge

         15  of the desk. Again, it is no surprise that a number

         16  of secretaries, of our secretaries, have been

         17  diagnosed with repetitive strain injuries and

         18  muscular skeletal disorders.

         19                 Teachers. Just look at the disturbing

         20  surge in violence we're seeing in our schools this

         21  year. After eight years of a steady decline in

         22  incidents, schools should be havens where educators

         23  can teach and children can learn.

         24                 Our members, who work so hard to

         25  teach, should not have to fear for their safety
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          2  while doing their jobs. Students should not have to

          3  fear coming to school.

          4                 Let me tell you one story about a

          5  junior high school special education teacher. This

          6  teacher attended mandatory workshops in emergency

          7  procedures and received a safety manual detailing

          8  emergency procedures for staff.

          9                 When two students began fighting in

         10  her classroom, she followed procedures, twice

         11  signaling over the intercom for help. But help did

         12  not arrive. One of the students tackled her and when

         13  she fell to the floor banged her head, neck and back

         14  with the classrooms' heavy metal door. She filed a

         15  personal injury lawsuit against what was then the

         16  Board of Education, which argued that it had no

         17  "special duty" to protect her from assault.

         18                 In June 2003, the Appellate Division

         19  1st Department disagreed, holding that when a

         20  municipality assumes a duty to protect and

         21  subsequently fails to act, it can be found liable

         22  for injuries that result. That's the Pasucci versus

         23  New York City Board of Education, New York Appellate

         24  Division Number 25095103.

         25                 The Appellate Court ordered that our
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          2  claim go to trial. Regardless of how her lawsuit

          3  turns out, from a moral standpoint it's clear that

          4  if the school system says it wants to make school

          5  safe, it has to act in ways to do so.

          6                 How can the City Council help assure

          7  that schools are safe and that our members don't

          8  suffer accidents, injuries and assaults that are

          9  preventable?

         10                 This is where the New York City

         11  Council Intro. 313 comes in. In our view, more

         12  effective regulation and monitoring is an absolute

         13  necessity. That's why we urge you to adopt this

         14  bill. We believe enactment and enforcement of this

         15  regulation will be instrumental in making our

         16  schools safer and will prevent many injuries,

         17  assaults and accidents through implementation of

         18  effective workplace designs, strategies, trainings

         19  and programs.

         20                 If I may, we have two paras with us

         21  today. One is Andrea Polite, in the white hat. She

         22  had three injuries in the last two months. One was

         23  an assault by a child on her nose. The second was

         24  what they call an "accident," because it was done by

         25  a child but it wasn't done in an assault fashion, so
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          2  it was on her nose. And the third one was a kick in

          3  the face. That's three in two months.

          4                 Linda Perez Sanchez, sitting right

          5  here. On 9/12/03, injured herself. When she injured

          6  herself, she didn't get a certificate case number

          7  given to her until the end of March.

          8                 She had treatment. She finally had

          9  the treatment. She couldn't get any until March,

         10  until the end of March, and what happened was, she's

         11  permanently injured. Her neck was in danger of

         12  falling. There is not enough musculature holding the

         13  neck in place. And, so, these are paraprofessionals

         14  who they're typical of what we have going on in our

         15  schools.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. A'Donna,

         17  thank you very much for your time and testimony. I

         18  want to thank you very much for your coming here,

         19  and it is a very important issue, obviously,

         20  workplace safety, in which I do believe 313 would

         21  most certainly help.

         22                 At this point I'd like to go to

         23  Council Member Gonzalez, who is also a sponsor of

         24  this legislation.

         25                 Council Member Gonzalez with a
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          2  question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Good

          4  afternoon. Am I on? Good afternoon.

          5                 It's a real privilege to be a

          6  co-sponsor of this intro, and I would like to thank

          7  Chairman Addabbo, as well as Councilman Gennaro, and

          8  I just want to say that quality of life is something

          9  that we all deserve, and if you're going to work,

         10  you need to be safe. So, therefore, I strongly

         11  support this intro.

         12                 And I have to leave, so you'll have

         13  to excuse me, because I have Economic Development

         14  upstairs. But we're like roadrunners.

         15                 Have a nice day. And I thank everyone

         16  that's here.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         18  Council Member Gonzalez.

         19                 I would like to also welcome to the

         20  table, Council Member Dennis Gallagher, a member of

         21  the Civil Service and Labor Committee.

         22                 At this point, Council Member Jim

         23  Gennaro with a question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 Mr. D'Addona, thank you so much for

          3  your comprehensive and moving testimony, and I just

          4  want to thank the people, the paras who came down to

          5  put a human face on what we're trying to do here.

          6                 And I'm just sorry that you've had to

          7  go through what you've had to go through, and I just

          8  want to let you know that we'll do everything we can

          9  in order to change the landscape so that these

         10  things don't happen in the future. Please give our

         11  best regards to Tom Durante, and all the good people

         12  at the UFT.

         13                 MR. D'ADDONA: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. D'Addona, a

         16  quick question.

         17                 As I asked Mr. Shufro, again, the

         18  letter from the Mayor's Administration says this is

         19  a duplicative intro, that there is a law already in

         20  place that the information is there, but there was

         21  no mention that a report was ever filed or a report

         22  is existing of workplace safety issues. What's your

         23  opinion about that?

         24                 MR. D'ADDONA: If it worked we would

         25  be able to get the information. Since we can't get
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          2  the information, there's nothing there. This law

          3  would be very helpful in getting that information.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you so

          5  much.

          6                 MR. D'ADDONA: Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Before I call

          8  the next individual to give testimony, I want to

          9  welcome Council Member Seabrook for being here

         10  today, a member of this Committee.

         11                 I also want to at this point thank

         12  the Sergeant-of-Arms for turning this press

         13  conference room into a hearing room today and for

         14  the fine work. Thank you very much for accommodating

         15  us.

         16                 The next person to come forward for

         17  testimony is Lee Clarke, from DC 37.

         18                 Lee. Lee, just state your name for

         19  the record and give your testimony, please.

         20                 MS. CLARKE: My name is Lee Clarke.

         21  I'm the Director of Safety and Health for District

         22  Council 37.

         23                 Good afternoon, Chair Addabbo and

         24  members of the Civil Service and Labor Committee. I

         25  just introduced myself, I'm Lee Clarke.
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          2                 I'm here today on behalf of the

          3  125,000 members of District Council 37 and our

          4  Executive Director Lilliam Roberts. We are urging

          5  you to strongly support Intro. 313.

          6                 Intro. 313 will provide access to

          7  meaningful and useful data that is needed by both

          8  the unions and New York City as an employer to

          9  determine where injuries, illnesses and losses

         10  occur, identify and target for intervention, risk

         11  factors that cause and contribute to workplace

         12  injuries and illnesses, determine and control the

         13  associated economic costs of workplace accidents,

         14  shortly develop proactive loss, control and risk

         15  management strategies, programs and procedures on

         16  both a Citywide and individual agency level to

         17  reduce or prevent workplace accidents and illnesses,

         18  and monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of safety

         19  and health interventions.

         20                 Over the years, District Council 37

         21  has repeatedly requested information regarding

         22  workers compensation claims and workplace injuries

         23  and illnesses.

         24                 We have specifically requested data

         25  detailing where accidents were occurring, what City
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          2  agencies and job assignments have high rates of

          3  injuries and illnesses, and what were the economic

          4  costs of these accidents.

          5                 Our requests were made at the

          6  Citywide Safety and Health Committee, which is part

          7  of DCAS.

          8                 This Committee is a contractually

          9  mandated committee whose mission is detailed in

         10  Executive Order Number 38 of 1997.

         11                 I have attached Executive Order 38

         12  for your information.

         13                 We have not received any workers

         14  compensation information whatsoever from the City,

         15  and this is in a joint labor management forum.

         16                 You will note that Executive Order

         17  No. 38 instructs the Citywide Safety and Health

         18  Committee to develop Citywide Safety and Health

         19  Programs and review and evaluate all City agency

         20  safety and health programs.

         21                 Moreover, Section 4-B of Executive

         22  Order 38 charges the Commissioner of DCAS with the

         23  collection and analysis of accident data in order to

         24  properly maintain a Citywide Occupational Safety and

         25  Health Program.
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          2                 Section 5-B1 of Executive Order 38

          3  instructs agency heads to collect and analyze safety

          4  and health data.

          5                 All of these activities are basic and

          6  sound business practices that should be carried out

          7  on a regular basis in order to help avoid accidents

          8  from occurring, as well as save the City money.

          9                 Unfortunately, to this day there is

         10  no systematic review of workers compensation data in

         11  New York City. As a result, there are no significant

         12  risk management policies that this Committee can

         13  implement or recommend to the Mayor.

         14                 In May of 2002, our Executive

         15  Director Lilliam Roberts issued a White Paper, her

         16  first White Paper, and in that she talked about the

         17  problem of skyrocketing costs for workers

         18  compensation in New York City.

         19                 She suggested that the City review

         20  workers compensation claims and other data in order

         21  to identify trends and patterns that were likely to

         22  cause injuries and to implement the risk management

         23  program in order to reduce injuries and contain

         24  costs. And of course the City did not act on our

         25  recommendation.
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          2                 There is no justification as to why

          3  information is not compiled or analyzed with an eye

          4  towards accidents and injury prevention and, of

          5  course, controlling costs.

          6                 This information exists, the

          7  technology exits to bring it together into a usable

          8  format.

          9                 Intro. 313 will protect workers from

         10  workplace injuries, and illnesses and lowers

         11  workers' compensation costs and increase

         12  productivity.

         13                 I thank you for allowing me to

         14  testify here today, and I really applaud every

         15  Council member who has sponsored this legislation.

         16  It is badly needed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         18  much, Mrs. Clarke. And just according to your

         19  testimony, you have been waiting seven years for

         20  information regarding the workers compensation

         21  issue, since 1997?

         22                 MS. CLARKE: You're being generous.

         23  I've been with the Safety and Health Department of

         24  District Council 37 since 1979. I have been working

         25  on safety and health issues on a Citywide basis. We
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          2  have been looking at the trend of workers comp. We

          3  have been attempting repeatedly throughout the years

          4  -- we meet with the City on a quarterly basis. At

          5  every meeting we request data, at every meeting we

          6  are not given any information.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And in your

          8  opinion you don't think Intro. 313 is duplicative in

          9  any way, right?

         10                 MS. CLARKE: Intro. 313 is not

         11  duplicative of any state regulation or state law.

         12                 I'm just as baffled as Joel Shufro

         13  over -- I would love to see the letter. I would also

         14  love to comment on it, simply because obviously

         15  there is a misunderstanding on what the state law

         16  requires.

         17                 The state law requires the gathering

         18  of accident and injury data. It does not address

         19  workers compensation, it does not address workers

         20  compensation cost. You can't compare the two.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I think you

         22  would agree, we should never put a price tag on

         23  workplace safety. According to our financial

         24  analysts, there is no cost involved to the City to

         25  implement 313. First, we should really -- unless
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          2  it's an outrageous cost, we should never really

          3  think about what it would cost to increase or

          4  protect workplace safety.

          5                 MS. CLARKE: I would certainly agree

          6  with that. And I would also commend your analysts on

          7  their findings that there is no cost.

          8                 There are plenty of functions within

          9  each City agency that currently exist that are

         10  currently staffed that can perform a data review.

         11  Every single agency has a safety and health

         12  coordinator, every single agency is mandated by

         13  Executive Order 38, has to appoint a senior staff

         14  person to be a liaison regarding safety and health

         15  issues. They're there. They're there already.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any questions

         17  from my colleagues?

         18                 Council Member Seabrook, I just

         19  wanted to note you on record.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: It was just

         21  an oversight, I want to make it known that I am a

         22  sponsor and will be placed on this bill.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Great. We'll

         24  make sure. Thank you very much. Council Member

         25  Seabrook. Thank you.

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 There being no further questions, Ms.

          3  Clarke, thank you very much for being here.

          4                 MS. CLARKE: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The last

          6  individual to give testimony today is Dr. David

          7  Kotelchuck, Professional Staff Congress. Tell me how

          8  wrong I was. Kotelchuck?

          9                 PROFESSOR KOTELCHUCK: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Professional

         11  Staff Congress of CUNY.

         12                 PROFESSOR KOTELCHUCK: Well, you know

         13  my name already so I won't read the first sentence.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         15                 PROFESSOR KOTELCHUCK: I am an

         16  Associate Professor in the Environmental and

         17  Occupational Health and Safety Program at Hunter

         18  College, CUNY, and I'm Co-Chairperson of the

         19  PSC-CUNY Health and Safety Committee.

         20                 PSC-CUNY is a union that represents

         21  20,000 faculty and staff at the City University of

         22  New York. We represent members on 18 campuses of

         23  CUNY all across, across all five boroughs of the

         24  City of New York.

         25                 PSC strongly supports Intro. No. 313,
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          2  which amends the Administrative Code of the City of

          3  New York by requiring each City agency to keep

          4  records on work-related injuries and illnesses,

          5  which occur to City employees and the worker

          6  compensation claims which arise from them and

          7  publish them on a quarterly basis.

          8                 While we recognize that work related

          9  injuries and illnesses are currently collected and

         10  reported to the Public Employee Safety and Health

         11  Division of the State Department of Labor, it would

         12  be especially helpful to the PSC to have a regular

         13  published record of workers compensation claims and

         14  expenses in order to help our union better

         15  understand our members' health and safety problems

         16  at CUNY and compare them to the experiences of other

         17  public employees.

         18                 Currently we do not know what our

         19  members' workers comp experiences are, because the

         20  data from each of our campuses is collected

         21  individually at each campus and is not collected at

         22  a central CUNY office.

         23                 I know this personally because I

         24  tried to get this data last year. I contacted the

         25  Chief Workers Comp person at CUNY to inquire about
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          2  health and safety experiences of our members and was

          3  told that I'd have to go to various different

          4  individuals. This on each campus.

          5                 There are different individuals in

          6  different departments, so you don't even know who to

          7  go to. There's no structural person. This

          8  time-consuming and difficult task, this is a

          9  time-consuming and difficult task, especially for

         10  one who are serving my union on a voluntary basis. A

         11  central repository of such information which this

         12  bill would provide, would be most helpful to us, and

         13  it would allow us for the first time to use workers

         14  comp data to help guide our CUNY-wide Health and

         15  Safety Committee in setting health and safety

         16  priorities for our members and comparing our

         17  experience to that of other agencies.

         18                 Thus, we could tell for the first

         19  time whether our members are suffering more frequent

         20  back injuries, for example, than employees in other

         21  city agencies, guiding us, perhaps, to a more

         22  proactive work in this area.

         23                 Our union has an active health and

         24  safety program with participation from members on

         25  all CUNY campuses.
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          2                 Passage of Intro. 313 would help us

          3  and CUNY do a better job in protecting and promoting

          4  the health and safety of our members.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          7  much, Dr. Kotelchuck. It's something I couldn't

          8  agree with you more in your testimony to have a

          9  regular published record of workers compensation

         10  claims and expenses to help, obviously, your union,

         11  but in general to better understand. You know, I

         12  think that's the bottom line. I'm going to add you

         13  to the list of those who gave testimony today who

         14  have requested information and found it very hard to

         15  get that information back in order to help.

         16                 One question I do have for you is you

         17  also mention in your testimony that you would use

         18  this data in this report in setting health and

         19  safety priorities for your members.

         20                 PROFESSOR KOTELCHUCK: Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: How can you see

         22  that as possibly saving money for CUNY? Do you see

         23  it as a cost-saving measure, if you had this data?

         24                 PROFESSOR KOTELCHUCK: On, absolutely.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: What way?
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          2                 PROFESSOR KOTELCHUCK: Well, we

          3  literally don't know what compensation claims our

          4  members have filed. If they choose to file them with

          5  individuals and don't go through our union, which

          6  often happens, we simply don't know that they're

          7  even being adjudicated by the Workers Comp

          8  Commission.

          9                 We literally don't know what all our

         10  members are doing. There is no necessity or

         11  obligation that they should come through the union.

         12  The union is a resource, it will help them if they

         13  seek help. But often times they would rather do

         14  things on their own. But what then we don't know is

         15  what's happening to our members. In fact, there may

         16  be some serious problems we're really not aware of.

         17  And for example, in my program I teach generally in

         18  the evenings, that means a lot of folks teach at

         19  night, they may not even know the folks in the

         20  daytime. They may not interact very much with them.

         21                 So, it would save money because we

         22  could do things to help lower the injury rate by

         23  working together, and I think the City University

         24  would save money, and there could be more money for

         25  the City University to give to our contract, for
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          2  example.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Interesting.

          4  Very interesting.

          5                 Any questions for the doctor, at this

          6  point?

          7                 I would like to welcome a member of

          8  this Committee, Honorable Allan Jennings.

          9                 Allan, thank you very much for being

         10  here.

         11                 Any other questions for Dr.

         12  Kotelchuck?

         13                 Thank you very much, Dr. Kotelchuck,

         14  for being here today.

         15                 PROFESSOR KOTELCHUCK: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, Intro.

         17  313 is to increase workplace safety, and to have a

         18  useful report in-hand to help us in the future. I

         19  appreciate all who have given testimony today. If

         20  anybody wants a copy of the Mayor's letter of

         21  opposition, I will leave it up here.

         22                 Thank you very much, to the

         23  Sergeant-At-Arms. Thank you.

         24                 Again, ladies and gentlemen, thank

         25  you for being here. We have copies for the Committee
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          2  members as well.

          3                 Let me say again, thank you very much

          4  for being here on Intro. 313, and again, my extreme

          5  thanks to Council Member Gennaro for introducing

          6  this piece of Legislation, allowing us to be a

          7  sponsor of it.

          8                 This will conclude part one of the

          9  Committee hearing. Again, part two is about the

         10  One-In-Three hiring and promotion for our civil

         11  service workers.

         12                 Ladies and gentlemen, thank you for

         13  being here for part one, and we will start part two

         14  probably in about 20 minutes or so. Thank you.

         15                 (Recess taken.)

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Welcome to part

         17  two of the Committee on Civil Service and Labor

         18  meeting. My name is Joe Addabbo, I chair the

         19  Committee.

         20                 I will introduce my colleagues as

         21  they enter. Today is a busy day at City Hall. This

         22  room, as I had mentioned to the first part of the

         23  hearing today, this room is normally used for press

         24  conferences. We are using it as a Committee hearing

         25  room, which is quite odd, if they have given
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          2  testimony before in other parts of City Hall,

          3  because there is basically no room at the Inn today.

          4  You know, City Hall Chambers is being used at this

          5  point, the Committee hearing rooms, we have two

          6  rooms next door at 250 Broadway, they are booked

          7  today. So, there is obviously productive work being

          8  done in the City today, so that's a good reason why

          9  we're here, but like I said, I definitely wanted to

         10  do this hearing, so I didn't want to delay it any

         11  further so we could use this room.

         12                 And I want to thank the

         13  Sergeant-At-Arms for converting the conference room

         14  and this press conference room to a Committee

         15  hearing room, and they have done a lot of hard work

         16  to get it ready, and I appreciate it.

         17                 I just wanted to thank at this point

         18  the staff who puts these Committee hearings

         19  together. To my right, this is Legal Counsel Tom

         20  Curry. I want to thank my legislative aide, Steve

         21  Adenesio, Joan Povolny, the Policy Analyst, and

         22  Daniel Turiago, the Financial Analyst, as well as

         23  Latitia Theodore, a new-comer from the

         24  Communications for the Committee.

         25                 The second part of this Committee
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          2  hearing today is the One-In-Three Rule. This

          3  Committee is having this hearing today in an attempt

          4  to better understand the hiring and promotional

          5  procedures of the One-In-Three Rule, and to examine

          6  the possibilities of abuse, unfairness and

          7  impropriety of such procedure, thus hampering the

          8  productivity and increasing worker frustration.

          9                 There have been allegations by

         10  workers and union representatives that often times

         11  qualified and experienced workers have been denied

         12  advancement and promotion as some City agencies

         13  manipulate a civil service list or the One-In-Three

         14  Rule.

         15                 These qualified and experienced

         16  workers claim to have been held back and not

         17  promoted, even though they were given no interviews,

         18  no requests for their employment evaluation, none of

         19  their supervisors were consulted, nor consideration

         20  of their past years of service, and have not been

         21  reinstated to the ASA list.

         22                 This Committee will continue to be a

         23  watchdog for fairness in the workforce by working

         24  with the agencies and attempting to ensure the

         25  adherence to these rules, regulations and procedures

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  regarding the City's workers.

          3                 This Committee will also entertain

          4  suggestions on how the One-In-Three Rule could

          5  possibly be amended and improved. I welcome all here

          6  today who are going to give testimony.

          7                 Our first panel today, I will

          8  introduce them, is Maria DiPaola from DCAS; Stephen

          9  Dobrowsky, also from DCAS; and Mitchell Paluszek,

         10  from DCAS. And I do appreciate your being here

         11  today.

         12                 For those who are giving testimony,

         13  if you will please state your name first and then

         14  give your testimony.

         15                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Okay. My name is

         16  Stephen Dobrowsky.

         17                 Good afternoon, Chairman Addabbo, and

         18  members of the Civil Service and Labor Committee.

         19                 I am Stephen Dobrowsky, Director of

         20  Certification in the Division of Citywide Personnel

         21  Services, DCPS, at the Department of Citywide

         22  Administrative Services, DCAS.

         23                 I'm joined by my colleagues, Mitchell

         24  Paluszek, Deputy General Counsel for Personnel Legal

         25  Matters; and Maria DiPaola, Assistant Commissioner
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          2  for Civil Services Administration.

          3                 Thank you this opportunity to provide

          4  this Committee with some information regarding that

          5  provision of the New York State Civil Service Law

          6  commonly referred to as the "One-In-Three Rule."

          7                 Before explaining the One-In-Three

          8  Rule in any detail, please allow me to provide some

          9  background which is useful in understanding the

         10  rule.

         11                 Public employment in the State of New

         12  York is governed by the New York State Civil Service

         13  Law, and is overseen, in the most general sense, by

         14  the New York State Civil Service Commission. The

         15  Civil Service Law, however, entrusts the local

         16  administration of its provisions to local

         17  commissions sometimes referred to as "municipal

         18  commissions," or "municipal civil service

         19  commissions."

         20                 The New York City Charter provides

         21  that for the City of New York and certain public

         22  authorities, the local municipal commission is the

         23  Commissioner of DCAS.

         24                 Consequently, whenever the civil

         25  service law makes a reference to a right or
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          2  obligation of a "municipal commission" or "municipal

          3  civil service commission," it is referring with

          4  respect to City agencies and authorities, to DCAS.

          5                 The Division of Citywide Personnel

          6  Services, DCPS, of DCAS provides a wide range of

          7  human resource services to City agencies. Its

          8  various bureaus develop, administer and rate

          9  competitive civil service examinations. DCPS

         10  certifies lists of eligible applicants, establishes

         11  qualifications for positions and audits appointments

         12  and promotions.

         13                 DCPS also tracks citywide vacancies

         14  and when necessary oversees layoffs.

         15                 DCPS identifies and meets the needs

         16  of Citywide staff training and development and is

         17  overseeing the progress of the New York City

         18  Automated Personnel System, NYCAPS.

         19                 The Bureau of Civil Service

         20  Administration within DCPS establishes, certifies

         21  and maintains civil service lists. In addition, the

         22  Bureau calculates seniority on promotional exams;

         23  responds to inquiries on military rights; processes

         24  transfers, title changes and reinstatements;

         25  maintains the official personnel histories of City
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          2  employees; investigates applicants for City

          3  positions and licenses, and responds to claims for

          4  Unemployment Insurance benefits for former City

          5  employees.

          6                 It would be useful at the outset to

          7  discuss the term "list." There are, in fact, several

          8  kinds of lists to which reference is made in the

          9  Civil Service Law and in our Personnel Rules and

         10  Regulations. It is, therefore, always important to

         11  make clear exactly what kind of list is being

         12  referred to.

         13                 For example, as the municipal

         14  commission, DCAS prepares and administers civil

         15  service examinations for competitive titles, which

         16  result in the establishment of rank-ordered

         17  "eligible lists." These lists are comprised of the

         18  names of candidates who have met the eligibility

         19  requirements for taking an examination and have

         20  passed the components of that examination, such as a

         21  written, physical or practical test. These

         22  candidates are given "list numbers," reflecting

         23  their relative rank on the eligible list.

         24                 When an agency is in a position to

         25  fill a vacancy in a competitive class title, that
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          2  agency will request DCAS to send a "certification,"

          3  which is often called "a certified list" or simply

          4  "a cert."

          5                 Generally speaking, a certification

          6  is a list of eligibles, in list number order, who

          7  are willing and qualified to accept an appointment,

          8  if offered.

          9                 An agency must utilize a

         10  certification if they wish to fill a vacancy in a

         11  competitive class title. In fact, the unit I head at

         12  DCAS is called the "Certification Unit," precisely

         13  because it is the responsibility of my unit to

         14  construct those certified lists in order to send

         15  them to agencies.

         16                 These certified lists are not the

         17  same as eligible lists. A certification sent to an

         18  agency to fill only a small number of vacancies, for

         19  example, would usually not include all the names on

         20  an existing eligible list - only enough to ensure

         21  that the agency will have enough names to consider

         22  to fill the vacancies. Certifications are the lists

         23  most closely associated with the One-In-Three

         24  process.

         25                 By way of introduction, it should be
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          2  remembered that the entire discussion about lists

          3  and the One-In-Three rule only involves titles in

          4  the competitive class; that is, titles to which DCAS

          5  offers competitive examinations. The One-In-Three

          6  Rule has no applicability for positions in the other

          7  three classes of classified civil service titles:

          8  The non-competitive class, the labor class and the

          9  exempt class.

         10                 The One-In-Three Rule, sometimes

         11  referred to as the "Rule-of-Three" is found in Civil

         12  Service Law Section 61, subsection 1, and governs

         13  how hiring agencies are to use the certifications

         14  provided to them by DCAS. It provides:

         15                 "Appointment or promotion from an

         16  eligible list to a position in the competitive class

         17  shall be made by the selection of one of the three

         18  persons certified by the appropriate civil service

         19  commission as standing highest on such eligible list

         20  who are willing to accept such appointment or

         21  promotion."

         22                 Essentially, the One-In-three Rule

         23  provides that an agency which has an ability to fill

         24  a vacancy in the competitive class is not obligated

         25  to appoint the very top name on the certification
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          2  provided to them by DCAS; rather, an agency has the

          3  discretion to consider the top three names on the

          4  certification and is only obligated to appoint any

          5  one of those three. The two candidates not chosen

          6  are said to have been "passed over" or "considered

          7  and not selected." This is sometimes abbreviated as

          8  "CNS."

          9                 In the City of New York, the name of

         10  a candidate who is considered and not selected for

         11  three vacancies at an agency will not be certified

         12  to that agency again; however, the name of that

         13  candidate will be certified to other agencies for

         14  consideration.

         15                 In short, the fact that an eligible

         16  has been passed over three times by one agency will

         17  have no impact on that eligible being considered for

         18  appointment to another agency.

         19                 It is important to emphasize that

         20  DCAS participates in no way whatsoever with the

         21  consideration process at an agency. DCAS is not the

         22  appointment authority. In DCAS' role as the

         23  municipal commission, it is only responsible for

         24  providing the names of qualified individuals for

         25  consideration and to ensure that the One-In-Three
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          2  Rule is applied in accordance with the Civil Service

          3  Law.

          4                 DCAS' audit of an agency's use of the

          5  certification will ensure that three qualified

          6  eligibles, whose names appear in order on a

          7  certification have not been "considered and not

          8  selected." On those occasions when a DCAS audit

          9  reveals an improper use of the One-In-Three Rule,

         10  DCAS will direct an agency to remedy its action.

         11                 There are occasions when an

         12  individual may seek to have his or her name restored

         13  to the eligible list, thereby making his or her name

         14  eligible for certification once again.

         15                 As noted above, an eligible who has

         16  been passed over three times by an agency will not

         17  have his or her name certified to that agency again.

         18                 However, that individual may make a

         19  request to that particular agency to have his or her

         20  name restored to the list for certification back to

         21  that agency.

         22                 The decision to honor such a request,

         23  however, is purely discretionary on the part of that

         24  agency. The agency is not obligated to have the

         25  eligible restored. And, again, DCAS does not
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          2  participate in an agency's decision to honor such a

          3  request.

          4                 Additionally, the name of an eligible

          5  will not be certified again to any agency if that

          6  eligible has been appointed from a certification to

          7  any agency. However, if for some reason that

          8  individual either resigns or is terminated from his

          9  or her position before the completion of his or her

         10  probation, that individual may make a request to

         11  DCAS to be restored to the eligible list.

         12                 If the list is still in existence,

         13  DCAS will generally solicit information from the

         14  agency regarding the individual's work record while

         15  employed at the agency, and will generally give

         16  great deference to the agency's recommendations as

         17  to whether the individual's work record warrants

         18  restoration to the list.

         19                 Again, although there is a right to

         20  request restoration under these circumstances, there

         21  is no absolute right to restoration itself.

         22                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         23  provide an overview of the "One-In-Three Rule." My

         24  colleagues and I are available to answer any

         25  questions you may have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Dobrowsky,

          3  thank you very much for your time and testimony.

          4                 Any other testimony from the panel,

          5  or they're basically here for questions? Great.

          6                 So, again, part of the reason for

          7  this Committee is just hearing that we get a better

          8  overview and a better understanding of the

          9  One-In-Three Rule. So, again, correct me if I'm

         10  wrong, but each agency has its own discretion with

         11  regard to the One-In-three Rule; is that correct?

         12                 MR. DOBROWSKY: That is correct,

         13  Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         15                 You had made a statement in your

         16  testimony, on those occasions when DCAS, when the

         17  DCAS audit reveals an improper use of the

         18  One-In-Three Rule, DCAS will direct an agency to

         19  remedy its action. Can we give any concrete examples

         20  as to what agencies when possibly an audit was made,

         21  any improper use of the One-In-Three Rule, do you

         22  have any concrete examples?

         23                 MR. DOBROWSKY: I don't have any

         24  specific examples. DCAS audits every certification

         25  that we create. Over the course of a year we created
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          2  approximately 1,700, 1,800 certifications. They were

          3  all audited by DCAS to ensure that the One-In-Three

          4  rule has been applied.

          5                 I don't have any specifics in mind at

          6  this point.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do we have any

          8  general idea that an agency was found, to your

          9  knowledge an agency was found to have an improper

         10  use of the One-In-Three Rule? Without specifics, but

         11  do you remember there being one?

         12                 MR. DOBROWSKY: We do get what we call

         13  dispositions that come back with the results of the

         14  certification, and we do find sometimes that there

         15  is a One-In-Three violation. What we do at that

         16  point is notify the agency that they have made an

         17  error in the appointment process and they're

         18  directed to correct that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Can this

         20  Committee possibly get a follow-up on any audits

         21  that have been done, where as -- and we'll look at

         22  both lists if you have, basically those agencies

         23  that have followed procedure, and those that may

         24  have not, say in the last given year, given their

         25  1,800 certifications? Do you think this Committee
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          2  can get some type of memo or report from DCAS? You

          3  don't see a problem with that?

          4                 MR. DOBROWSKY: I should say that an

          5  agency may make an error on one certification and

          6  not on others. Sometimes it's just an oversight, so,

          7  it's not one agency is constantly doing it --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I guess that

          9  would be what we're looking for, Mr. Dobrowsky, is

         10  basically a trend for any particular agency.

         11                 Obviously, if an agency makes a

         12  single error, that can be isolated as a non-common

         13  or an uncommon situation, but the bottom line is, if

         14  we see a trend, a certain agency has been audited

         15  time and time again, and has found to improperly,

         16  again, follow the procedure of One-In-Three, then

         17  we'd like to see if there is a trend and find out

         18  about that.

         19                 So, if we can get a follow-up, I

         20  would greatly appreciate that.

         21                 Do you see the reasoning behind, you

         22  know, if a person is not selected three times that

         23  they basically are off the list or moved on to

         24  another; do you see any reasoning why that would be

         25  three times?
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          2                 MR. DOBROWSKY: Only to the effect

          3  that that's the Civil Service Law.

          4                 MR. PALUSZEK: Our rules. The

          5  personnel rules and regulations of the City of New

          6  York, which have been authorized and approved by the

          7  State Civil Service Commission, provide us the

          8  ability to take somebody off of a list or to not

          9  certify that name again after three times.

         10                 As far as I know, that's been our

         11  rule, our state-approved rule for years.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You don't know

         13  of the reasoning behind the three, why three? It's

         14  just basically it's part of the Rule, it's part of

         15  the law, and that's why you use the three?

         16                 MR. DOBROWSKY: That's correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         18                 Does a person actually have to have

         19  an interview to be selected?

         20                 MR. DOBROWSKY: No. An agency can

         21  consider things, such as work history, and

         22  especially promotion exams, that's what in some

         23  cases agencies do consider is the individual has

         24  been at an agency for several years, and then, first

         25  of all, in order to be promoted, an individual has
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          2  to be working at an agency for a minimum of one

          3  year, they have to pass their probationary period.

          4  So, the agency has the work history of this

          5  individual, so it's not necessary to have a

          6  face-to-face interview with a person on the list.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And just for my

          8  clarification, Mr. Dobrowsky, if an interview is not

          9  required, are there any set requirements for a

         10  selection? If an interview is not required, what is

         11  required?

         12                 MR. DOBROWSKY: The selection process

         13  is really left up to each individual agency. We

         14  monitor the use of the Rule-In-Three. We make sure

         15  that the appointments are made in the proper

         16  sequence, but we don't dictate to an agency what

         17  that process should be, in terms of how they

         18  consider people for appointment or selection.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Considering

         20  that, obviously, each opening is different for a

         21  position each and therefore for that position

         22  qualifications differ, candidates for those

         23  positions differ, obviously it would be hard to have

         24  a steadfast criteria, and that may be the reason for

         25  the discretion with the agencies, but with that
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          2  discretion it just leads me to somehow possibly

          3  believe that with that discretion comes at some

          4  point, at some time, possibly impropriety in, again,

          5  administering the One-In-Three Rule. That's why I

          6  loved that follow-up, again, with that memo of,

          7  again, if we take a given year of audits, you know,

          8  what possibly, what trends may exist. I mean, I'm

          9  not saying they definitely exist, but what may

         10  exist?

         11                 Somebody is taken off the list, they

         12  can go back onto the list, not with that agency but

         13  another agency, correct?

         14                 MR. DOBROWSKY: On an open-competitive

         15  list, if an eligible has been seen three times by

         16  one agency, they will not be certified back to that

         17  agency, but they can be sent out to any other agency

         18  that uses that title.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: How often? In

         20  your opinion, how often does that happen? How often

         21  are they put on their list?

         22                 MR. DOBROWSKY: It's really hard to

         23  tell. Like I say, we certify about 1,700, 1,800

         24  certifications. We have somewhere in the

         25  neighborhood of maybe 100-300,000 people that are on
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          2  the list, it's really -- it happens, I couldn't tell

          3  you really off the top of my head what that number

          4  is.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Each agency has

          6  their own list? Each keeps a record of their own

          7  list, or is it Citywide?

          8                 MR. DOBROWSKY: DCAS maintains all the

          9  eligible lists, and we certify, we send the

         10  certifications out to the agency, whenever the

         11  agency indicates that they have a need to fill a

         12  position.

         13                 We may sometimes certify the same

         14  list to 20 or 30 agencies simultaneously.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: DCAS tracks

         16  Citywide vacancies; is that correct?

         17                 Part of your testimony, the DCPS,

         18  Division of Citywide Personnel Services, which is

         19  part of DCAS, correct? You track Citywide vacancies;

         20  can I ask how you track vacancies?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DiPAOLA: It's

         22  not with our particular area, but there is a unit

         23  which I think receives posting notices from

         24  agencies. I can't really speak to any more detail

         25  than that, but our understanding is that this
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          2  person, this unit, receives the vacancy notices from

          3  the agencies, and puts them out to every other

          4  agency to I believe the Internet.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Could the agency

          6  have an opening and not give a posting notice, thus,

          7  you know, again, hiring from within or some other

          8  way?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DiPAOLA: It's

         10  possible.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It's possible.

         12  In your opinion, do you think that happens often?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DiPAOLA: I

         14  really don't know. It's not an area that I cover

         15  personally.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: But the only way

         17  that you would obviously track the vacancies and

         18  thus help you look at the eligible list, would be

         19  with the postings, correct?

         20                 So, if we found out there were

         21  agencies more and more not notifying you with these

         22  postings, obviously this list can be circumvented.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DiPAOLA: Our

         24  agency is obligated to use the list for permanent

         25  appointments, if there is a list in existence. So
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          2  that the only kinds of postings that we could see

          3  are for titles where there is no civil service list,

          4  or where there's a certain kind of appointment where

          5  a list does not apply.

          6                 And that's one of the things that the

          7  posting unit does. When they get a posting, they

          8  first check to see if there is a list before the

          9  posting goes anywhere.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, if we can

         11  go back to that memo, if we could do the one-year

         12  audit, I would really appreciate that. And this

         13  Committee will obviously look upon you, if we do

         14  have any further questions. I know we have a list of

         15  testimonies that we're going to hear today, I'm

         16  hoping that someone from DCAS can stay behind to

         17  hear them, possibly for a follow-up after today. I

         18  don't know whether that's possible with the

         19  Administration or with DCAS. And again, I want to

         20  get to those who have signed up to speak, so I look

         21  forward to working with you in the future regarding

         22  this issue, okay?

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER DiPAOLA: Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: In all deference

          3  to those who are here and who signed up first, I

          4  want to call up, again, two panels of two. The first

          5  two being Elizabeth Bejarano and Madra Crump. Would

          6  you step forward, please.

          7                 From here on in the witnesses will be

          8  given two minutes to give their testimony, because

          9  we do want to get through everyone, and allow some

         10  time, if possible, for questions and answers.

         11                 If anybody has written testimony,

         12  please submit them to the Sergeant-At-Arms.

         13                 MS. CRUMP: Good afternoon. My name is

         14  Madra Crump. I have worked for the City of New York

         15  for 32 years. I'm presently employed at DDC as a

         16  staff analyst.

         17                 I recently took the ASA exam, and

         18  unfortunately, this agency has seen fit to abuse the

         19  list. I mean, they hire people with titles other

         20  than ASA and make them staff analysts or other

         21  positions, but our experience has been that at DDC,

         22  with this promotional list, they said they don't

         23  have to call us, but we get letters in the mail

         24  telling us that we've been knocked off the list and

         25  that we're no longer eligible without any due
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          2  consideration. And yet, other employees who have

          3  lower list numbers than us are promoted and they

          4  have not taken on any additional duties. They

          5  haven't been switched or transferred any place else,

          6  and yet they're qualified and we are disqualified.

          7                 And if I talk to other employees of

          8  the City of New York that work for other City

          9  agencies, they also expect the same experience with

         10  promotional exams. I mean, the One-In-Three Rule,

         11  most employees think it means that they call the

         12  first three people and they'll select one of those

         13  people. But what we're being told is that that's not

         14  the way it works. They can call 25 people, and they

         15  can pick number 14, even though you're number six,

         16  and skip over you over and over again, until you're

         17  off the list and you don't know anything about it. I

         18  mean, you have no opportunity to appeal or anything.

         19  And after working for the City for 32 years, and

         20  with experience and time in these rules and

         21  regulations and various other factors, I mean, we

         22  don't know what the considerations are. I mean, what

         23  are our opportunities? I mean, if the exam is the

         24  way to go, at this point it looks like they're using

         25  the exam as a merit, as opposed to based upon your
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          2  job experience, your past performance, and your

          3  passing of the exams.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sorry, what

          5  agency are we talking about, in your case?

          6                 MS. CRUMP: Oh, the Department of

          7  Design and Construction.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: DDC, okay.

          9                 MS. CRUMP: And one man seems to be

         10  totally in charge of this agency.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. Ms. Crump,

         12  thank you very much.

         13                 Ms. Bejarano.

         14                 MS. BEJARANO: Good afternoon. Please

         15  bear with me, this is impromptu.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes.

         17                 MS. BEJARANO: But I am actually here

         18  representing myself. I'm a staff analyst for the

         19  City of New York. I've been with the City for about

         20  four and a half, five years. I'm not very familiar,

         21  believe it or not, after all this time I'm still not

         22  very familiar with the bureaucracy and the rules and

         23  so forth, but from the little bit that I know, as

         24  far as the One-In-Three Rule is concerned, I'm not

         25  here to be David to the City's Goliath. I want to
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          2  see something that will have us all win, that will

          3  be a win/win situation for the civil servant, for

          4  the City government, and for those that hold the

          5  upper management position.

          6                 I understand that the One-In-Three

          7  Rule would not be ever gotten rid of, and I

          8  understand that the upper management needs to have

          9  their executive discretion. Can't we have a

         10  compromise where if an agency exhausts its list and

         11  they're out there picking up provisionals, can't we

         12  have people from another agency where there aren't

         13  any positions for them and they're still on that

         14  list, be able to be picked up in another agency?

         15                 Before the statement made by the

         16  gentleman from DCAS, it was my understanding that

         17  the list is intrinsic to each agency and that if

         18  you're off the list, if you're CNS'd from the list

         19  in the agency that you work in, you are not able to

         20  go to another agency to be picked up. And I'll tell

         21  you, gentlemen, it's a sad situation what's

         22  happening. I think you need to ask a lot of

         23  questions, and look for a win/win situation, because

         24  right now it's not.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.
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          2                 MS. BEJARANO: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ms. Bejarano,

          4  thank you very much. You did very well.

          5                 Thank you, Mrs. Crump.

          6                 MS. CRUMP: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: What I would

          8  offer to those, I don't know if anybody from DCAS

          9  stayed behind, is anybody from the Administration

         10  here? Okay.

         11                 If anybody has questions that they

         12  would like for us, because, again, I think we're

         13  going to open the door today with DCAS and with

         14  other City agencies with regards to One-In-Three, if

         15  any individual has a question that they would like

         16  to have asked to the agencies, please submit it to

         17  my office and we will hopefully get you an answer

         18  very soon, okay?

         19                 So, the next two individuals to come

         20  up, Nancy Johnson and Aruna Patel.

         21                 MS. JOHNSON: Okay, my name is Nancy

         22  Johnson. I took the exam for Associate Staff in June

         23  2001. I came out number 12 on the list, but in

         24  December I received a notice that I was considered

         25  not selected without any kind of reason, no
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          2  explanation, and I never received an interview. I

          3  also know for a fact that people with lower list

          4  numbers were in fact appointed. And I wrote a letter

          5  to our personnel officer saying I would like to be

          6  restored to the list. I never heard any response to

          7  that. And based on my qualifications and my level of

          8  education, I've been with the City for almost 23

          9  years, and I have a Master's Degree in Management. I

         10  don't think that my qualifications as far as my work

         11  record would have been in any way a detriment to my

         12  ability to perform the duties of an Associate Staff

         13  Analyst.

         14                 I also haven't heard any response

         15  from any of the other letters I have written,

         16  whether it's by e-mail or official letters or

         17  anything like that. And there just doesn't seem to

         18  be any particular reason for it. And there's also

         19  somebody within my particular unit that had a much

         20  lower list number and she was appointed and I was

         21  not, and I've been here much longer than she. So, it

         22  just seems like it's been very arbitrary and

         23  capricious the way this list has been handled.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ms. Johnson, by

         25  the way of your ID, I'm guessing DOT is your agency,
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          2  right?

          3                 MS. JOHNSON: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I'm sorry,

          5  Ms. Bejarano, the agency you work for?

          6                 MS. BEJARANO: I work for the

          7  Department of Design and Construction.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: DDC as well?

          9  Okay, thank you. I'm sorry.

         10                 Ms. Johnson, your matter was when?

         11  What year? Your issue.

         12                 MS. JOHNSON: I took the test in 2001.

         13  June 9th of 2001, and then in December I got this

         14  notice that I'm considered not selected, and that's

         15  all it said.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. Thank you

         17  very much, Ms. Johnson.

         18                 MS. JOHNSON: You're welcome.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And Ms. Patel.

         20                 MS. PATEL: Okay, good afternoon. I

         21  would like to thank you all for this opportunity to

         22  present my testimony on the Committee.

         23                 My name is Aruna Patel, and I have

         24  been an employee of the New York City Department of

         25  Transportation since July 1002.
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          2                 I have received my master's degree in

          3  Inorganic Chemistry and Master's Degree in

          4  Education. I am here today because I feel that I

          5  have been unjustified bypassed for promotion for the

          6  title of ASA.

          7                 I took the Associate Staff Analyst

          8  Exam in June 2001. When the list was certified, I

          9  received list number 47 on the agency list. I

         10  received a letter dated December 26, 2001 from the

         11  DOT Personnel Office indicating that I was

         12  considered and not selected for appointment or

         13  promotion to three separate vacancies. I was

         14  informed in the same letter that I should write to

         15  Personnel for restoration to the Civil Service List.

         16                 On December 31st, 2001, I promptly

         17  submitted a restoration request to Personnel Office.

         18  Until March 25, 2003, I did not receive a status in

         19  writing on my request for restoration of the ASA

         20  list.  I also sent an e-mail request to Personnel

         21  about the status of my restoration. The response

         22  indicated

         23  " the issue of restoration to the list is being

         24  addressed on an agency-wide basis at the executive

         25  level. If and when a decision is made to restore any
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          2  or all of those who were considered but not

          3  selected, we will do so." To this date, I have not

          4  received any further communication on the status of

          5  my request.

          6                 Paperwork for my promotion to ASA was

          7  prepared on January 11, 2002, but was never

          8  submitted to the Personnel Office. To me this

          9  indicates that acknowledgment by the management that

         10  I deserve to be promoted into the ASA title.

         11                 On August 28, 2003, I filed a

         12  grievance of Out of Title work. No decision has been

         13  made up-to-date, and I feel that this is unjustified

         14  for my promotion.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And, Ms. Patel,

         16  this is also DOT?

         17                 MS. PATEL: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Department of

         19  Transportation, okay.

         20                 Thank you very much for both of you

         21  being here.

         22                 MS. PATEL: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I appreciate

         24  your time.

         25                 MS. PATEL: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The next

          3  individual to come up and give testimony, Robert

          4  Croghan.

          5                 Mr. Croghan, for the record, just

          6  please state your name, your affiliation, and give

          7  your testimony, please.

          8                 MR. CROGHAN: Fine.

          9                 Bob Croghan, I'm the Chairperson of

         10  the Organization of Staff Analysts.

         11                 I want to start by indicating that we

         12  really don't have any disagreement with the

         13  representatives from DCAS.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Croghan, I

         15  appreciate it, but DCAS and the Administration is

         16  back in the room and I appreciate them coming back.

         17  My apologies.

         18                 Okay, they're in the back.

         19                 MR. CROGHAN: Well, they should be

         20  happy hearing what I'm saying.

         21                 We do not have a problem with DCAS,

         22  the way they have tried to handle this list. Our

         23  problems come to specific agencies. In fact, we

         24  think that DCAS has acted highly professionally and,

         25  in fact, admirably.
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          2                 I have a prepared statement, if there

          3  is any questions.

          4                 I'm very proud of the work done by

          5  members of Organization of Staff Analysts Research

          6  Department. You have been given whole books of

          7  information.

          8                 On June 9th of 2001, nearly 2,000

          9  staff analysts took the exam for promotion to

         10  Associate Staff Analyst. Each of my members was

         11  aware that they failed to pass the exam that was

         12  testing them for merit and fitness, they could not

         13  be promoted to the permanent title of Associate

         14  Staff Analyst.

         15                 Each have spent dozens of hours in

         16  classrooms and most have spent hundreds of hours

         17  working on the thousands of pages of reference

         18  material we had given them.

         19                 June 9th was a warm day and some were

         20  extremely uncomfortable. Hundreds failed the exam

         21  that day, and they would be denied promotion for the

         22  years to come. But nearly 1,300 candidated did pass

         23  the exam.

         24                 Over the next three years most

         25  agencies did promote those of their staff who had
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          2  passed the exam. In a few agencies, however, every

          3  effort was made to avoid obeying either the spirit

          4  or the letter of the civil service law.

          5                 The folders provided to the City

          6  Council detail a pattern of abuse by certain City

          7  agencies. Commissioners appointed to positions of

          8  public trust are guilty of betraying that trust, and

          9  for what reason?

         10                 The clearest example is the New York

         11  City Department of Transportation. 21 candidates

         12  were denied appointment. That agency had no fiscal

         13  reason to deny promotion. There are as many and more

         14  associates serving provisionally right now.

         15                 The agency had no factual basis to

         16  deny promotion either. As you will see in the

         17  folders provided, the very same employees denied

         18  promotion often rated far above average by their

         19  superiors. They were even assigned to Associate

         20  Staff Analyst work in many cases while they're being

         21  denied permanent status.

         22                 We're not talking about bad apples,

         23  we're listing the names and documenting the work

         24  histories of outstanding career employees denied

         25  fair treatment.
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          2                 Pat Burns and Rhonda Messer of the

          3  Department of Health and Mental Health won their

          4  out-of-title grievances. The agency needs their

          5  work, is even paying them for their work as

          6  Associate Staff Analyst. Yet, that agency still

          7  denies them the permanent status that both their

          8  work and the success on the exam merits.

          9                 Ms. Tyrrany from the Department of

         10  Transportation, a corrosion engineer and a graduate

         11  of the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, I

         12  didn't even know there was such a field of study.

         13  Many years ago, when Ms. Tyrrany was not yet working

         14  for the City, she noticed the problem. She called up

         15  the Department of Transportation and warned them

         16  that in her estimate East River Bridges were about

         17  to fall down. They were.

         18                 As soon as the Department of

         19  Transportation got the money to fix them, they

         20  called her up and offered her a job. She was

         21  thereafter recommended for promotion. He agency has

         22  now refused. Why?

         23                 I ask the members of the Council to

         24  read the stories. Some of these candidates have

         25  already testified today. Our request for remedy is
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          2  very reasonable, even conservative. We're talking

          3  about promotional exams here.

          4                 We ask only that once the list is

          5  exhausted, those considered by not selected be

          6  restored for future consideration. To do less, and

          7  to appoint persons never even tested for merit and

          8  fitness instead is an open breech of the public

          9  trust.

         10                 We ask your help to halt this abuse.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Croghan,

         12  thank you very much for your testimony.

         13                 In your testimony you do list DOT. Is

         14  that the only agency, to your knowledge, that you

         15  have an issue with, a concrete example, or are there

         16  others?

         17                 MR. CROGHAN: In the green folder that

         18  my Chief of Research over here has --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         20                 MR. CROGHAN: We have a list of them.

         21  DOT happened to be the worst, but there's about five

         22  or six who didn't do well at all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And how many

         24  have you documented, and in this case in your

         25  testimony it's DOT, how long have you documented
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          2  what would be an improper use of the One-In-Three

          3  Rule?

          4                 MR. CROGHAN: We've been following

          5  this particular list for the whole three years, and

          6  I will say that this was a little bit unusual,

          7  because what occurred was, the list came out just

          8  before the change of Mayoral administration. A

          9  number of agencies rushed through the list,

         10  considering but not selecting large numbers of

         11  people, well they're subsequently appointed, but in

         12  order to reach individuals who needed to receive

         13  permanent status before the Administration that

         14  appoints them provisionally left office. In most

         15  agencies they came back and got them again, DOT did

         16  not, some of the others did not.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And do you see

         18  at the root of the problem possibly the agency's use

         19  of discretion? Do you see like -- and, again, we

         20  mentioned in earlier testimony by DCAS saying

         21  agencies do have a lot of discretion with the

         22  One-In-Three rule, do you see that as possibly being

         23  the root of the problem here?

         24                 MR. CROGHAN: Our problem is not the

         25  use of discretion. They have the discretion to put a
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          2  person off the list, considered, not selected. Our

          3  problem is the misuse of discretion. To appoint

          4  somebody who was neither tested for merit and

          5  fitness instead, or also perhaps took the test and

          6  then failed and they appoint that person rather than

          7  the one who passed. It's a misuse of discretion when

          8  you start doing that. Most agencies don't do that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Periodically

         10  with those who give testimony, I'm going to ask this

         11  question, and that is, we identified, or at least

         12  you in your testimony have identified a problem with

         13  the One-In-Three, or possible problem with

         14  One-In-Three, your suggestions for possibly amending

         15  the One-In-Three, or how would we remedy the

         16  situation?

         17                 MR. CROGHAN: When the agency has

         18  exhausted a promotional list, if anyone has been

         19  considered and not selected, during the course of

         20  going through the list, those individuals should be

         21  put back on the list, reconsideration in the normal

         22  process, before any provisional appointments are

         23  made.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: When you say put

         25  back on the list, obviously put back on the same
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          2  list, or even another agency's list?

          3                 MR. CROGHAN: No, they can only be in

          4  their own agency, because that's the way the

          5  promotional lists go, unless the Mayor determines

          6  that this is a Citywide list.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

          8                 MR. CROGHAN: And that has not

          9  occurred in an awfully long time. About five

         10  administrations.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. Again, I

         12  do appreciate it. I do have the packet, and it was

         13  useful obviously in preparing for this hearing. I

         14  thank you very much for your time and your effort.

         15  Thank you very much, Mr. Croghan.

         16                 The next two individuals that will be

         17  called up, Edward Price, ASA, and Seth Frankel.

         18  Please step forward.

         19                 Mr. Price, Mr. Frankel, if you have

         20  testimony, please submit it.

         21                 Please state your name for the

         22  record, and give your testimony, please.

         23                 MR. PRICE: Okay, fair enough.

         24                 My name is Edward Price, and I've

         25  been employed by the New York City Department of
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          2  Transportation since 1977 in a Staff Analyst

          3  Capacity. I've worked in the fiscal and

          4  transportation safety areas, preparing agency

          5  budgets, designing and evaluating traffic safety

          6  programs.

          7                 For the last ten years, I have been

          8  with the Parking Violations Bureau in Long Island

          9  City in purchasing.

         10                 I have an academic background in

         11  business and economics, having gone to Manhattan

         12  College as an undergraduate, and St. John's

         13  University for Graduate School.

         14                 Since moving to Manhattan in 1982, I

         15  have been active in my Upper East Side community, in

         16  civic associations, politics and aid to the elderly.

         17  I believe that I am the only person in my agency who

         18  have been turned down for promotion from the last

         19  three promotion lists, once each decade. I am never

         20  selected for interviews for provisional

         21  appointments, no matter how often I submit my

         22  resume, whether a list is in existence or not.

         23                 I always receive very good or

         24  excellent evaluations.

         25                 Several years ago I filed a grievance
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          2  with the Mayor's Office of Labor Relations to have

          3  my position classified as staff analyst II. But my

          4  agency fought this all the way to a level three

          5  hearing.

          6                 I cannot explain why I am treated

          7  this way decade after decade. Sometimes I think I am

          8  on a black list for some reason, or maybe the

          9  administrations just like to promote their friends.

         10                 I have watched the agency promote

         11  people provisionally who never took an exam to

         12  Associate Staff Analyst, because they were

         13  personally close to their Commissioner, or belonged

         14  to the right political group. I have seen others who

         15  failed to pass the promotion exam, receive

         16  appointment for jobs for which I cannot even get an

         17  interview, list or not, despite my almost three

         18  decades of experience.

         19                 The situation has forced my public

         20  career to a standstill, and cost me at least

         21  $200,000 in lost wages over working lifetime, not to

         22  mention pension and social security benefits.

         23                 I have not been allowed to work up to

         24  my capacity, so the public has also lost.

         25                 I am presently trying to put my son
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          2  through college and this lack of promotion adds to

          3  the financial sacrifice.

          4                 I would like to see some remedy for

          5  this situation before I am forced to take an early

          6  retirement to earn more money.

          7                 I think I have lost enough for

          8  whatever unknown sin I have committed, and I would

          9  like to see others protected from a similar faith.

         10                 Besides, my son wants to go to

         11  graduate school and maybe run for City Council some

         12  day.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Price, a

         14  quick question.

         15                 MR. PRICE: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Before we get to

         17  Mr. Frankel.

         18                 You mentioned here a very interesting

         19  point about productivity, about obviously your

         20  frustration and that many have held back your

         21  productivity. Do you think a proper use of the

         22  One-In-Three Rule creates better productivity

         23  amongst the workers?

         24                 MR. PRICE: Oh, absolutely. It

         25  motivates.

                                                            87

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So, morale picks

          3  up?

          4                 MR. PRICE: Oh, definitely.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Productivity

          6  picks up.

          7                 MR. PRICE: People realize that, you

          8  know, if they're treated fairly, you know, they will

          9  behave better, work better. There's no doubt about

         10  it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That is a fine

         12  point, Mr. Price.

         13                 MR. PRICE: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         15  much for your time and testimony.

         16                 Mr. Frankel.

         17                 MR. FRANKEL: I obviously won't read

         18  all of that, but it does deal with productivity. Let

         19  me address that in one minute.

         20                 Because of being recalled to DDC, I

         21  had previously been an Associate Staff Analyst for

         22  the previous eight years at DEP, DDC and the Fire

         23  Department, I was recalled to DDC as a permanent

         24  staff 1. I was number one on the DDC promotional

         25  list, but I had been on leave of absence when the
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          2  list was first called. Since being there exactly two

          3  years now, I've been moved to four different jobs,

          4  each time called a "Staff Analyst 1." I have in fact

          5  notified, I will give you evidence, all the

          6  Commissioners, Deputy Commissioners, Assistant

          7  Commissioners, they have done just about nothing for

          8  the past two years. So, productivity has been

          9  nothing for my salary.

         10                 The One-In-Three Rule has allowed the

         11  Deputy Commissioner of the Administration and the

         12  Personnel Director at DDC to do this with me and

         13  other people.

         14                 Now on the issue address DCAS and

         15  remedies, I was notified only one time by Personnel

         16  Director Allard at DDC that I was removed,

         17  considered, not selected, for a vacancy.

         18                 (Written testimony read into the

         19  record.)

         20                 The Mayor demands greater

         21  productivity from the City workforce; the City

         22  Council wants greater productivity from the City

         23  workforce; New Yorkers deserve the most efficient

         24  workers possible in return for their tax dollars.

         25                 The One-In-Three Rule stands in the
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          2  way of productivity.

          3                 For the past two years, although I

          4  have fought for work, I have been paid $83,000 of

          5  City payroll money to do nothing.

          6                 The One-In-Three Rule permits agency

          7  personnel officials to prevent qualified,

          8  experienced employees from accomplishing City work

          9  at a level of expertise that Civil Service

         10  Examination has certified them to perform.

         11                 I'm a Stuyvesant High School

         12  graduate. After four years of enlisted service in

         13  the US Air Force during the Vietnam War, I earned my

         14  Bachelor of Science in Management, magna cum laude,

         15  with majors in Operations Management and Management

         16  Information Systems.

         17                 I went on to earn a Master of Science

         18  in Management with a specialization on

         19  Organizational Decision-Making and Computer-based

         20  Managerial Decision Support.

         21                 I have over 13 years of experience as

         22  an analyst for the New York City government.

         23                 Until May of 2002, I had served as a

         24  Senior Analyst for the previous nine years.

         25                 For three years at DEP, where,
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          2  working alone, first as a Senior Project Coordinator

          3  and subsequently as an Associate Staff Analyst, I

          4  designed, programmed, and implemented an elegant,

          5  effective, low-cost Contract Bid Analysis Program

          6  that ran on an Engineer's desktop computer.

          7                 For five years as an Associate Staff

          8  Analyst at the DDC, where, in addition to providing

          9  analysis and designing reports, I performed all of

         10  the computer mapping of Infrastructure Projects.

         11                 Then for 11 months as an Associate

         12  Staff Analyst at the Fire Department, where I was

         13  recruited to join an Analytical Bureau initiated by

         14  Mayor Giuliani and Commissioner Von Essen to provide

         15  COMPSTAT-type performance analysis to the FDNY

         16  senior staff.

         17                 In my nine years as a Senior Analyst,

         18  the only two evaluations I was given document my

         19  fully satisfactorily performance at the Department

         20  of Design and Construction as an Associate Staff

         21  Analyst.

         22                 With a 96.7010, I held the highest

         23  score by three and a half points on the Department

         24  of Design and Construction's Associate Staff Analyst

         25  Promotion list, certified in October 2001.
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          2                 The only reason I am not a permanent

          3  Associate Staff Analyst now, working for the City at

          4  the Associate Staff Analyst level of complexity,

          5  after having been a Provisional Senior Project

          6  Coordinator and Provisional Associate Staff Analyst

          7  with DEP, DDC and the Fire Department from May 1993

          8  until April 2002, is that DDC's Deputy Commissioner

          9  of Administration, Jeffrey Bonne, and Assistant

         10  Commissioner of Human Resources, Marisa Allard,

         11  compelled me to return to DDC as a Staff Analyst

         12  Level 1. Then although I was by a goodly measure

         13  Number 1 on their ASA promotional list, Mr. Bonne

         14  and Ms. Allard have kept me unpromoted in my

         15  permanent Staff Analyst title by means of the

         16  In-In-Three Rule.

         17                 These two DDC Administrators, the two

         18  who control promotions and personnel assignments,

         19  have intentionally, deliberately, and repeatedly

         20  prevented me from performing the level of work I've

         21  proven over the past ten years that I should be

         22  doing for the City.

         23                 I am not a permanent Associate Staff

         24  Analyst at DDC only because I had sufficient

         25  ambition to attempt to advance my career.
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          2                 If I had not taken the opportunity

          3  offered me at FDNY, if had I stayed at DDC, I would

          4  have been automatically promoted by then Personnel

          5  Director Marisa Allard as the first candidate on the

          6  promotional list, a no-cost promotion, with

          7  probation, since I was an Associate Staff Analyst

          8  who had served provisionally for more than two years

          9  in the title, in job and in agency.

         10                 It is only because I left DDC to

         11  accept an Associate Staff Analyst position at the

         12  Fire Department in a unit whose mission ended with

         13  the destruction of the Twin Towers that I was put at

         14  risk of being not promoted, and in fact was demoted

         15  by the DDC Personnel Director, Marisa Allard.

         16                 The One-In-Three Rule has allowed Ms.

         17  Allard to do this.

         18                 When the Associate Staff Analyst

         19  lists were certified by DCAS in October 2001, I had

         20  been working as an Associate Staff Analyst for eight

         21  years continuously.

         22                 Unfortunately, for me, although I was

         23  by then working at FDNY, I was Number 1 on the ASA

         24  promotional list back at DDC, because unless DCAS

         25  establishes a Citywide list, promotional lists are
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          2  agency-specific.

          3                 This meant that even though I held

          4  the highest ranking, was a "no-cost promotion", and

          5  had a proven record as an Associate Staff Analyst,

          6  Ms. Allard could, and did, mark me as being on

          7  "leave of absence" from my lower Staff Analyst

          8  title, of which DDC kept ownership.

          9                 Deputy Commissioner Bonne promoted

         10  all of the non-cost associate staff analysts he

         11  could reach on its list, and none of its "cost"

         12  Associate Staff Analysts, while leaving me an

         13  unpromoted Provisional ASA on Leave of Absence to

         14  the Fire Department.

         15                 After I had been working 11 months at

         16  FDNY, Ms. Allard wrote me a letter demanding that I

         17  either resign my permanent, lower Staff Analyst

         18  title or return within ten days to DDC. She

         19  stipulated that I be reinstated at the lower

         20  permanent title, at a forfeiture of one-third of my

         21  FDNY salary.

         22                 Ms. Allard's letter raises three

         23  issues of concern to this Committee:

         24                 The Department of Citywide

         25  Administrative Services Public Service Bulletin
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          2  200-10 states:

          3                 "It has been and will continue to be

          4  the City's policy to encourage its employees to seek

          5  advancement opportunities within City government."

          6                 I had done just that: Leaving a safe

          7  Provisional ASA job at DDC, a dead-end job without

          8  challenge or even hope of future challenge, but

          9  which would have guaranteed me a Permanent ASA

         10  Promotion and a "lock-in" of my ASA salary when the

         11  ASA Examination was certified.

         12                 Instead, I "sought advancement

         13  opportunities within City government."

         14                 I undertook a Provisional ASA

         15  position at the Fire Department, in an area of

         16  immediate Mayoral initiative.

         17                 PSB 200-10 further declares that,

         18  although a permanent City worker has the right to

         19  return to their permanent title at their previous

         20  agency, this provision "does not preclude the former

         21  employer from reappointing the employee to his/her

         22  former Provisional Position if the former employer

         23  so chooses."

         24                 So, according to DCAS:

         25                 1) The City encourages its workers to
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          2  risk leaving their agencies in hopes of advancing

          3  their City careers; and

          4                 - 2) Agencies that have

          5  satisfactorily employed permanent employees in

          6  Provisional titles can reinstate them in those

          7  provisional titles.

          8                 Ms. Allard's letter and subsequent

          9  actions expressly contravened these guidelines.

         10                 Ms. Allard's letter also stated on

         11  April 16th, 2002 that my leave status had to be

         12  "resolved now."

         13                 This was simply not true.

         14                 Andrew Wrubel of DCAS Special

         15  Programs Unit informed me that an agency can retain

         16  a permanently titled employee on Leave of Absence

         17  status from that title, for two years, o nits own

         18  volition; for four years with DCAS approval.

         19                 So, Ms. Allard and Mr. Bonne could

         20  have left me on leave at FDNY for three weeks and

         21  three years beyond the date of April 29the, 2002.

         22                 Or, Ms. Allard and Mr. Bonne could

         23  have called me back to DDC because they had a

         24  challenging job at my previous Associate Staff

         25  Analyst level that they needed me to take on.
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          2                 They could have done that, and it

          3  would have benefitted the Mayor, the Council and the

          4  City.

          5                 I want to make this absolutely clear:

          6                 Deputy Commissioner Bonne and

          7  Personnel Director Allard deliberately chose to:

          8                 1) Force my recall to DDC after 11

          9  months, not four years, and to;

         10                 2) Reinstate me at my lower,

         11  permanent title, a junior level at which I had not

         12  been employed for 11 years.

         13                 But, and this is the part that I hope

         14  will inspire action by the Council: Deputy

         15  Commissioner Bonne and Personnel Director Allard had

         16  no work for me to do at DDC.

         17                 I'm not referring to easy,

         18  unchallenging work: I mean precisely: No Work

         19  Whatsoever.

         20                 The workday before I returned to DDC,

         21  before resigning my position at the Fire Department,

         22  I again called Marisa Allard, to ask what work DDC

         23  needed me to do.

         24                 Marisa Allard told me, the day before

         25  my return, that she hadn't determined that yet.
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          2                 The unanswered question remains: Why

          3  was I summoned back to DDC by Personnel Director

          4  Allard -- immediately -- contrary to DCAS

          5  regulations on Leave of Absence -- and pressed to

          6  resign an Associate Staff position with FDNY, to

          7  assume an inferior staff I position at DDC when

          8  Director Allard didn't have a job for me?

          9                 The day I reported back to DDC, April

         10  29th, 2002, Personnel Director Marisa Allard

         11  assigned me to the Structures Corrections Unit.

         12                 This is a unit that in the prior six

         13  years of DDC's existence never had an analyst

         14  working for it -- simply because in six years they

         15  never had any use for an analyst.

         16                 The Correction Unit Director, Jung

         17  Shin, informed me that Jeffrey Bonne and Marisa

         18  Allard had instructed him to assign me to Rikers

         19  Island as a Site Inspector on Prison Facilities.

         20                 To his credit, Mr. Shin told them

         21  that Rikers Island wasn't a penal colony for his

         22  workers, that the space on the DDC trailer on Rikers

         23  Island was needed for Construction Site Inspectors.

         24  The Corrections Unit Director offered me such a job

         25  on Riker's Island as a Site Inspector.
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          2                 I informed him that I had no

          3  experience in construction, that Site Inspection was

          4  not a job Staff Analysts had qualification to

          5  perform.

          6                 I asked him point-blank: If someone

          7  were injured or killed on a site that I inspected,

          8  would he be willing to take the responsibility as my

          9  boss?

         10                 I did not go to Rikers Island.

         11                 I sat at a desk for the next three

         12  months without any assignments. During this

         13  interval, I informed then Deputy Commissioner Anne

         14  Papageorge, her successor, Louie Rueda, DDC

         15  Commissioner Ken Holden, and even Mayor Bloomberg,

         16  that I was a certified Associate Staff Analyst with

         17  over a dozen years' experience on a wide variety of

         18  senior level analytical jobs, receiving a City

         19  paycheck, occupying a City desk, but with no work to

         20  do. I asked each of these officials if there were

         21  any work any of them wanted me to perform. I

         22  received no response.

         23                 After three months back at DDC, due

         24  solely to the effort of Louie Rueda, I was

         25  transferred by Personnel Director Marisa Allard to
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          2  the Structures/Estimating Unit which was in

          3  desperate need of someone qualified to customize a

          4  complex computer application DDC had purchased. I

          5  had the skills to perform this work. However, it was

          6  far more complex than Staff Analyst work; according

          7  to City Tasks And Standards, this software

          8  modification is classified at Computer Specialist

          9  Level 3.

         10                 Computer Specialist Level 3 work

         11  calls for almost twice the pay I was getting as a

         12  Staff Analyst I.

         13                 Giving me this salary outright would

         14  have left Mr. Bonne and Ms. Allard no excuse to deny

         15  my promotion to Associate Staff Analyst.

         16                 Deputy Commissioner Louie Rueda and

         17  Unit Director Marc Meyers were glad to have me do

         18  the work, particularly at a Staff I salary.

         19                 I explained the complex nature of the

         20  work to them.  I informed Director Meyers that it

         21  was certainly out-of-title work for a Staff Analyst

         22  Level I.

         23                 Director Meyers told me that while he

         24  indeed had the power to hire me at that level, and

         25  that he was frankly amazed that I had come back to
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          2  DDC to work so cheaply, he had gotten me from Marisa

          3  Allard at a bargain salary and title, and therefore

          4  saw no need to hire me at the proper title and pay

          5  at that time.

          6                 Deputy Commissioner Bonne, in receipt

          7  of my resume, my requests for work matching my level

          8  of ability, and with full knowledge of my No. 1

          9  standing on his ASA list, wrote me the following

         10  letter about my new assignment on August 29th, 2002.

         11                 D/C Bonne wrote me:

         12                 "This assignment should fully utilize

         13  your skills and abilities."

         14                 Deputy Commissioner Bonne was willing

         15  to "fully utilize" me; however, he was not willing

         16  to promote me from his Associate Staff Analyst

         17  promotional list.

         18                 So, given work of a far higher level

         19  than my permanent Staff Analyst I title and pay, I

         20  proceeded to DO the work, and followed proper Civil

         21  Service procedure by filling an out-of-title

         22  grievance.

         23                 I again wrote to the Mayor, asking

         24  him to encourage Deputy Commissioner Jeff Bonne to

         25  promote all cost-action Associate Staff Analysts.
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          2                 In this e-mail I pointed out to the

          3  Mayor that DDC evidently had the money in its

          4  personnel budget to promote all of its ASA

          5  candidates: The person at DDC who controlled

          6  promotions, who had failed to promote even one

          7  "cost-action" Associate Staff Analyst, Deputy

          8  Commissioner Jeff Bonne, had helped himself to a

          9  $10,000 pay boost on June 17th, 2002.

         10                 At this time, the last two weeks of

         11  Fiscal 2002, most City agencies were under Mayoral

         12  mandate to cut their budgets by 15 percent. The Fire

         13  and Police suffered seven percent cuts.

         14                 In this serious fiscal crisis, how

         15  did Mr. Bonne get his pay raise approved by

         16  Commissioner Holden (I cannot begin to guess OMB's

         17  reasoning)?

         18                 I infer a quid pro quo, since Jeff

         19  Bonne simultaneously awarded another $10,000 raise

         20  to Commissioner Holden's closest subordinate and

         21  advisor, Jessica Williamson. Mr. Bonne and Ms.

         22  Williamson's $10,000 pay raises are marked on the

         23  first page of the enclosed booklet of DDC pay

         24  actions, on June 17th, 2002.

         25                 Jeff Bonne's salary jumped to

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  $130,973.

          3                 Director Jessica Williamson's pay

          4  jumped to 4121,786.

          5                 This is an astounding salary for a

          6  Director of Departmental Affairs. Ms. Williamson's

          7  official job functions in-house were DDC Librarian

          8  and editor of the DDC Newsletter. Her real job was

          9  Commissioner Holden's advisor.

         10                 The average Director's salary range

         11  at DDC is $75,000 to $85,000. The starting salary

         12  for a promoted Associate Staff Analyst is $54,488.

         13                 There is a blatant

         14  conflict-of-interest inherent in these two salary

         15  increases; Deputy Commissioner Bonne, while refusing

         16  to use DDC Personnel Budget funds to promote even

         17  one Cost-action Associate Staff Analyst, a Civil

         18  Service process over which he alone held control,

         19  had appropriated $20,000 of that Personnel budget

         20  money for Pay Raises for himself and Commissioner

         21  Ken Holden's most trusted advisor.

         22                 At the time of Jeff Bonne and Jessica

         23  Williamson's June 17th, 2002 pay raises, for the

         24  nine previous months since its certification, Deputy

         25  Commissioner Bonne had not approved One Cost-Action
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          2  promotion from DDC's certified ASA Promotional List

          3  of 45 individuals. In contrast, HRA had promoted 181

          4  out of 188 certified ASA candidates.

          5                 At the end of every Fiscal year since

          6  DDC's inception, D/C Bonne has returned unspent

          7  Capital Budget personnel funds to OMB.

          8                 At the end of last fiscal year, he

          9  returned One Million Dollars to OMB.

         10                 In my case, on October 25, 2002,

         11  after 12 weeks actually working in the Estimating

         12  Unit, DDC Labor Relations Director Marta Bechtold

         13  ruled that I had to "cease and desist" immediately

         14  the software modifications I was performing. This

         15  work has remained undone.

         16                 Ms. Allard, in spite of Deputy

         17  Commissioner Bonne's letter determining that my

         18  assignment in Estimating was a perfect match for my

         19  skills and abilities, joined in the ruling, issuing

         20  me orders to be reassigned immediately to the Third

         21  assignment for me in six months back at DDC: The

         22  Information Technology Applicants Unit.

         23                 However, this time Personnel Director

         24  Allard and Deputy Commissioner Bonne instructed the

         25  Information technology Assistant Commissioner, Raul
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          2  Canabal and Computer Applications Unit Director

          3  Douglas Tiburcio, who badly needed Programmers (a

          4  job I have performed in the past) to give me only

          5  the simplest work to do, work that could not

          6  substantiate my grievance action.

          7                 For 17 months, there was no real work

          8  for me as a Staff Analyst Level I in DDC's ITS

          9  Application Unit.

         10                 As a result, I did nothing

         11  substantial for my pay, with the full knowledge of

         12  my Director, my Assistant Commissioner, Raul

         13  Canabal, my Deputy Commissioner, Steve Murphy,

         14  Commissioner Ken Holden, and, once again, Anne

         15  Papageorge, initially as 1st Deputy Commissioner,

         16  and then Acting Commissioner for six months.

         17                 I kept all of these administrators

         18  informed that I had no practical work to perform,

         19  and absolutely none at my proven level.

         20                 DDC now has a new Commissioner, David

         21  Burney. I immediately wrote to him, describing my

         22  situation.

         23                 I have lobbied so hard for proper

         24  work and promotion within DDC that I have been

         25  enjoined by DDC's new Dierctor of Discipline, Janice
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          2  Stroughter, from any further writing to "DDC

          3  Management."

          4                 After almost two years of requesting

          5  work as an Associate Staff Analyst, I have been

          6  reassigned to the software modification job. It is

          7  out-of-title work, but it is honest, useful work. My

          8  August 2002 grievance for this out-of-title work is

          9  finally due to be adjudicated by The Office of

         10  Collective Bargaining later this month.

         11                 All these actions by Deputy

         12  Commissioner Bonne and the now Assistant

         13  Commissioner Allard, keeping me from being a

         14  productive employee, could not have happened if they

         15  didn't have the use of the current One-In-Three

         16  Rule.

         17                 These actions by Deputy Commissioner

         18  Bonne and the now Assistant Commissioner Allard

         19  could not have happened if current DCAS Regulations

         20  and Civil Service Laws were enforced by the Civil

         21  Service Commission, the Mayor, and the Council.

         22  Director Allard's Civil Service Law Violations:

         23                 During my four relocations in two

         24  years back at DDC, after my letters to the Mayor,

         25  when DDC finally started promoting cost-action
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          2  Associate Staff Analysts, Personnel Director Marisa

          3  Allard violated Civil Service Law Section 61.3 in

          4  her efforts to not promote me.

          5                 Section 61.3 of the Civil Service Law

          6  requires -- and I want to stress requires --

          7  appointing agencies to notify candidates from

          8  promotional lists who are considered but not

          9  selected in writing each time that agency CNSs them

         10  and fills a vacancy with somebody else, and to

         11  notify that CNSed person, again in writing, before

         12  DCAS itself is notified, when that 3rd CNS action

         13  causes that person to be cast off the Promotional

         14  List.

         15                 Marisa Allard violated this

         16  requirement three times in my case. Marisa Allard

         17  only notified me one time when I was CNSed for One

         18  Vacancy.

         19                 I did not know for four months

         20  subsequent to 24 July 2002 that I, the highest

         21  scoring candidate on DC's associate staff analyst

         22  list, had been expunged from that list.

         23                 My Union informed me, or I would not

         24  have known this.

         25                 Civil Service Law 61.3 demanded that
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          2  Marisa Allard inform me of this action before she

          3  notified DCAS; she did not.

          4                 In November of 2002, after

          5  discovering I had been removed from the list in

          6  July, I requested reinstatement to the list.

          7                 Personnel Director Allard replied

          8  that my reinstatement was "Up to the Agency's

          9  Discretion."

         10                 At this point, not trusting my

         11  agency's discretion, I pointed out to Marisa Allard

         12  and Jeff Bonne that Personnel Director Allard had

         13  violated Civil Service Law Section 61.3; had never

         14  notified me for the 2nd and 3rd CNS actions, as the

         15  law required; and Marisa Allard had failed to notify

         16  me, after the 3rd CNS, as the law required, that she

         17  was instructing DCAS to remove me from the DDC list.

         18                 Marisa Allard apologized to me for

         19  her "error" in an e-mail.

         20                 Her apology is not satisfactory

         21  performance as specified by Civil Service Law

         22  Section 61.3. I have so written to the Public

         23  Advocate, and to DCAS Assistant Commissioner Jyl

         24  Towns, and the DCAS General Counsel.

         25                 In his reply to my letter, DCAS'
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          2  Deputy General Counsel Mitch Paouczek felt that Ms.

          3  Allard's apology to me for her violation of Civil

          4  Service was sufficient remedy.

          5                 I trust that the City Council

          6  Committee on Civil Service will join me in holding

          7  that an apology for an egregious, willful,

          8  premediated, and deleterious violation of Civil

          9  Service Law by a City Personnel Director is not

         10  sufficient remedy.

         11                 I hope this Committee will demand

         12  compliance to the Law, by any and all City Officers,

         13  or proper remediation from them for violating the

         14  Law.

         15                 The only penalty Personnel Director

         16  Allard sustained for her Civil Service Law

         17  violations was a $10,000 pay raise on Christmas Eve,

         18  2002, elevating her salary as Director to $85,987.

         19  [Page 15 in DDC Personnel Actions Booklet].

         20                 One week later, Jeff Bonne promoted

         21  Ms. Allard, his protege', to Assistant Commissioner.

         22  [Ibid, page 16].

         23                 At that time, D/C Bonne created Two

         24  new Assistant Commissionership to elevate two DDC

         25  Directors: One for Ms. Allard, Another one for Loida
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          2  Ramirez, Commissioner Holden's friend. Ms. Ramirez

          3  has since joined Mr. Holden Quantum Associates.

          4                 Ms. Allard's salary increase for this

          5  promotion was never posted in the City record; the

          6  pay range for an Assistant Commissioner at DDC

          7  exceeds $100,000.

          8                 Conclusion:

          9                 I want to conclude by telling the

         10  Council, that in my 13 years of City Service I have

         11  been again and again impressed by the real

         12  dedication and professionalism which I continually

         13  discover in the daily performance of most of the

         14  Municipal employees I've come into contact with.

         15                 These are people, who are clearly not

         16  in it for the money: People who give much more to

         17  this City than they cost.

         18                 However, the Mayor and the Council,

         19  in their aim to find accountability for City

         20  expenditures, need to put an end to the venality,

         21  cronyism, and incompetence which have run unchecked

         22  in the administration of the Department of Design

         23  And Construction for the eight years of its

         24  existence.

         25                 The reason we have a Civil Service is
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          2  to eliminate such violations of the Public Trust.

          3                 If the Council and the Mayor fail to

          4  maintain and ensure a strong Civil Service, then

          5  despite the good intentions of one or two honest

          6  City Administrations, we easily slide back down to

          7  the patronage system New York experienced under

          8  Mayors Tweed and Walker.

          9                 Taxpayers then get a City

         10  administered by those who are Politically Connected,

         11  those who have the "right" friends.

         12                 I want the Mayor, the City Council,

         13  and the People to know that it is Not the City

         14  workers standing in the way of productivity: It is

         15  Commissioners, Deputy Commissioners, Assistant

         16  Commissioners and Personnel Directors who have been

         17  given the power to use the One-In-Three Rule to

         18  reward each other, their friends, and their

         19  sycophants, while bypassing career Civil Servants

         20  who have demonstrated their competence, both by

         21  their experience and by their performance in Civil

         22  Service Examinations.

         23                 The rationale for conducting Civil

         24  Service examination is to benefit the City by hiring

         25  and promoting the most qualified.
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          2                 Now, more than ever, City

          3  administrators must be forced to comply with

          4  examination results.

          5                 They must not be allowed to hire,

          6  promote, and reward each other with City jobs and

          7  taxpayers' money.

          8                 Amending the One-In-three rule will

          9  be a good first step; eliminating it would be a

         10  better one.

         11                 MR. LEYS: In the private sector, if

         12  an organization promised jobs, collected a $50

         13  application fee from each applicant, took in tens of

         14  thousands of dollars and then reneged on providing

         15  those positions, it's almost a certainty that they

         16  would be investigated and brought to court.

         17                 However, in City government, these

         18  shameful practices have become a regular part of the

         19  system.

         20                 In 2001, I paid the City of New York

         21  $50, spent three months attending classes at my

         22  union, spent $30 on tapes, passed a difficult and

         23  comprehensive exam and I was still denied a

         24  promotion into the position for which I qualified. I

         25  played the game by the rules, but the city did not.
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          2  At the present time, I feel I've been cheated of

          3  over $10,000 in lost income, including increased

          4  payments to my pension fund.

          5                 I was passed over for what would have

          6  amounted to an $8,000 raise. I was given no

          7  interview, my employee evaluation was not requested,

          8  my supervisors were not consulted and my employment

          9  history and years of service were not called into

         10  question.

         11                 I understand that none of this is

         12  personal in nature. I was passed over strictly on

         13  the basis of money.

         14                 I was then told to submit a request

         15  to the head of the personnel, asking my name be

         16  restored to the list. I immediately did so, and I

         17  have heard nothing more about it.

         18                 Subsequent to being removed from the

         19  list, I have been put forward for promotion to the

         20  ASA title by my current Commissioner, Jay Jabar, and

         21  my direct supervisor Tom Whitehouse.

         22                 These promotions were approved by

         23  Deputy Commissioner Judith Bergtraum.

         24                 During this process I have had at

         25  least two conversations with Helene Halloway with
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          2  the Personnel Department, and both times I was told

          3  that they had no problem restoring my name to the

          4  list.

          5                 On one of these occasions in her

          6  office she excused herself to consult whether or not

          7  there were any provisionals in line for the ASA

          8  position. She returned and said there were not, and

          9  therefore there would be no problem.

         10                 Ms. Vera Cahill, our Fiscal Officer,

         11  was present at this meeting.

         12                 I understand that the list has been

         13  declared exhaustive, although Ms. Halloway insists

         14  that I could be appointed ASA the future.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ABBADDO: Do you want to

         16  wrap up?

         17                 MR. LEYS: Let me just wrap up by

         18  saying, ironically one section of the Associate

         19  Staff Analyst exam addressed why we need a civil

         20  service system. The point was made that although

         21  sometimes flawed, civil service is the only real

         22  alternative our government has to a patronage

         23  system.

         24                 Commissioner Weinshall, who employs

         25  several of her closest friends and relatives on her
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          2  executive staff, would seem to bear out this belief.

          3  It's no wonder why she considers the civil service

          4  system a hindrance and a threat.

          5                 One more thing. Both the press and

          6  the public often criticize civil servants for their

          7  indifferent performance; however, City policy that

          8  refuses to provide incentives and reward service

          9  helps to explain why so many civil workers seem

         10  disgruntled and emphathetic.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ABBADDO: Thank you very

         12  much, Mr. Leys. Stay there. Don't move.

         13                 Mr. Altman.

         14                 MR. ALTMAN: Okay, my name is Leslie

         15  Altman. I work for New York City Department of

         16  Health and Mental Hygiene.

         17                 I've been employed by the City of New

         18  York for over 20 years. Prior to coming to the

         19  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, I was

         20  Deputy Director of Human Resources of the New York

         21  City Taxi and Limousine Commission. My civil service

         22  title was Principal Administrative Associate. My

         23  attendance and work record were exemplary and I

         24  received very good evaluations.

         25                 I came to the Department of Health
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          2  following a promotion and permanent civil service

          3  title for Staff Analyst and have worked in the Human

          4  Resources Unit ever since.

          5                 Three years ago I took and passed the

          6  Associate Staff Analyst exam with the rank of number

          7  seven on the list. To my surprise, I was not

          8  promoted within my unit, but passed over for two

          9  other staff members, one provisional employee who

         10  scored less on the test, and another who failed it

         11  outright.

         12                 Somehow individuals who failed the

         13  test or scored lower than me on the exam were able

         14  to receive a title of Associate Staff Analyst.

         15                 My only recourse was to go to the job

         16  hiring pool. To my surprise, I was warned against

         17  going to the hiring pool by my supervisor and by the

         18  Acting Director of Employment Services, neither of

         19  whom gave an explanation of why I should not go.

         20  Both declared emphatically that I would be taken

         21  care of later.

         22                 I was called to only one hiring pool

         23  and was interviewed for three positions. I was not

         24  selected and was removed from the civil service

         25  list.
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          2                 At this time the opportunities were

          3  increasingly less and with a hiring freeze, combined

          4  with an active civil service list that I was no

          5  longer on.

          6                 I requested a meeting with the

          7  Assistant Commissioner of Human Resources who

          8  informed me that I should not have taken a test at

          9  all, and they had plenty of money for hiring

         10  purposes but would not promote me because I did not

         11  provide assistance to one of his recruiters.

         12                 I was startled by his response,

         13  especially since I was never once given any hint by

         14  him or anyone else that I would not be considered

         15  for a promotion, nor was I ever given the assignment

         16  to providing assistance to his staff.

         17                 The inclusion of this requirement for

         18  promotion for promotion, and the fact that I had not

         19  been given any reason to believe I would be removed

         20  from the civil service list seemed strikingly unfair

         21  to me.

         22                 At this point, I turned to my union

         23  for advice and was advised the agency had total

         24  discretion over their hiring process, and they

         25  invited me to testify on behalf of City Council Bill
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          2  concerning abuse of the One-In-Three privilege, not

          3  only in my case, but in others as well.

          4                 I have become increasingly frustrated

          5  and discouraged. I have an attendance record that

          6  does not show a single sick day in the last four

          7  years, a high score on a difficult civil service

          8  exam, and a willingness and ability to assume

          9  greater responsibilities.

         10                 My situation seems to make a mockery

         11  of the civil service system. I hope it will take

         12  seriously the issues of fairness and commitment to

         13  the civil service system that I have raised.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Altman,

         15  again, you bring up another word, and that's

         16  "fairness." And that's what we're really looking

         17  for here, we're looking for fairness amongst the

         18  promotional procedures.

         19                 The agency that you seem to have an

         20  issue with at this point is?

         21                 MR. ALTMAN: New York City Department

         22  of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         24                 DOT, correct, Mr. Leys?

         25                 MR. LEYS: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Twenty years on

          3  the job, Mr. Leys?

          4                 MR. LEYS: Over 20.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Over 20.

          6                 MR. LEYS: Over 20 years with City.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And how long

          8  with the Department of Health?

          9                 MR. ALTMAN: Four years, five months.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And, again, just

         11  to conclude your testimony, again, any suggestions

         12  that you may have to amend the One-In-Three Rule?

         13                 MR. ALTMAN: I believe that people

         14  that aren't picked, as others have stated

         15  they have been passed over on the last, should just

         16  be reconcentrated into the list again, and bring it

         17  down to the last two people. And those last two

         18  people who aren't picked, should go on a Citywide

         19  civil service list so they get a chance to be

         20  promoted somewhere within the City of New York. If

         21  they passed the test, they deserve a fair chance to

         22  be promoted.

         23                 MR. LEYS: And I would say that if

         24  you're going to make people jump through hoops, the

         25  tests and scores and things like that, you should
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          2  provide some kind of criteria to reject them. You

          3  have to give some explanation why you don't think

          4  these people are -- you know, some flaw, but you've

          5  got to at least come up with something, not just

          6  passed over on the list.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Arbitrary,

          8  right.

          9                 MR. LEYS: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Gotcha. Thank

         11  you very much, gentlemen for your time and

         12  testimony.

         13                 The next two individuals to be called

         14  up, Marguerite Cronin. Did I get that right? Cronin?

         15  Marguerite step up.

         16                 And Ronda Messer. Is Ronda here?

         17  Okay, please state your name and give your

         18  testimony.

         19                 MS. CRONIN: My name is Marguerite

         20  Cronin, and I work for the New York City Housing

         21  Preservation Development Agency.

         22                 I am here today on behalf of a change

         23  to the One-In-Three Rule. I have been a victim of

         24  this rule.

         25                 On September 11th, 2002, I was
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          2  informed that I was being promoted -- I was not

          3  being promoted.

          4                 Subsequently, my job responsibilities

          5  increased one month after my denial to be promoted

          6  to Associate Staff Analyst.

          7                 I have tried to be reinstated to the

          8  Associate Staff Analyst list, but have been

          9  unsuccessful.

         10                 I was given the following reasons why

         11  I could not, or was not promoted.

         12                 On January 15th, 2003 I was informed

         13  I was new to the agency. On December 10th, 2003, I

         14  was informed, one, being new to the agency was no

         15  longer a reason; two, budgetary reasons; three, we

         16  just don't want to give you the money; and, four, we

         17  don't have to give you a promotion, because you're

         18  not one of ours.

         19                 Clearly, my performance has never

         20  been an issue. I would like to close by saying that

         21  I am a career civil servant, and although I have

         22  approximately four years with my present agency, I

         23  have in total 30 years of civil service experience

         24  and time, and if I cannot rely on taking a test to

         25  further my career, then my career as a civil servant
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          2  has been misleading.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          4  Marguerite.

          5                 Marguerite, one quick question. When

          6  you had mentioned the reasons why you were denied,

          7  how did they convey that language to you, in the way

          8  of a phone call, writing?

          9                 MS. CRONIN: I was told by writing

         10  initially that I was not promoted. I pursued by two

         11  letters to my personnel.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes.

         13                 MS. CRONIN: My personnel rep -- I was

         14  referred to my personnel representative who told me

         15  that I was new to the agency and that was in the

         16  January 2003 --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It was written

         18  in verbal?

         19                 MS. CRONIN: Yes, yes. Yes, but these

         20  statements were verbal, except for the written one

         21  saying that I was not promoted.

         22                 And then subsequently I was permitted

         23  to have a meeting with the career counselor in

         24  December of 2003. And all these reasons came out of

         25  that conversation.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay, Ms.

          3  Cronin. Thank you very much.

          4                 And New York City Housing, right?

          5                 MS. CRONIN: Yes, New York City

          6  Housing Preservation and Development.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes, okay.

          8                 Ms. Messer.

          9                 MS. MESSER: My name is Ronda Messer.

         10  I currently work for the Department of

         11  Transportation, as I have for over 11 years, working

         12  for the City more than 16 years, in total.

         13                 In June 2000, I was offered the

         14  position of Deputy Director of the Community Service

         15  Program, which was to mean a promotion to Associate

         16  Staff Analyst.

         17                 While I accepted the position at that

         18  time and took on all the responsibilities, I was

         19  never compensated with the promised promotion and

         20  accompanying increase in pay.

         21                 Currently holding the title of Staff

         22  Analyst, all of this time I have been working out of

         23  title.

         24                 On June 9th, 2001 I took the test in

         25  question. When the ASA list came out, I was number
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          2  two on the DOT list.

          3                 I was subsequently notified that I

          4  had been considered and not selected three times,

          5  and was now being removed from the existing list,

          6  although I had never been invited to a list call or

          7  interview.

          8                 As per the instructions in the

          9  letter, I made a written request to be restored to

         10  the DOT list, it's my believe that the same request

         11  was made on behalf of my personnel coordinator.

         12                 I never received any answer and have

         13  been informed by the union that my name has, in

         14  fact, not been restored as of yet. With the

         15  exhaustion of the list, the agency is able to go on

         16  and hire ASAs provisionally who never even took the

         17  test.

         18                 On April 12th, 2004, I attended a

         19  step 2 grievance hearing where a decision was made

         20  in my favor. My allegations were uncontested by my

         21  supervisor as the AC in charge of my division has

         22  been trying to get me promoted to ASA for some time.

         23  It's my understanding, I will finally get the

         24  promised promotion to the ASA that I was promised so

         25  long ago.
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          2                 At this point if I'm not restored to

          3  the DOT list, I'll have to take the title

          4  provisionally instead of permanently, which seems

          5  terribly unfair, considering I was number two on the

          6  DOT list in the first place.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes, it's a

          8  shame.

          9                 I have a question. Neither of you

         10  were interviewed for this position?

         11                 MS. MESSER: No interview.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: No interviews at

         13  all.

         14                 Do we know if they have taken your

         15  prior work experience into consideration, or you

         16  don't know that?

         17                 MS. MESSER: No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Were your

         19  supervisors called, or, again, co-workers, anything

         20  regarding the status of your work or quality of your

         21  work.

         22                 MS. MESSER: My supervisors expressed

         23  surprise that I was not picked up.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Surprised.

         25                 MS. MESSER: I had paperwork in for
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          2  the promotion, including the backing of my AC.

          3                 MS. CRONIN: Can I say something?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Sure.

          5                 MS. CRONIN: My documentation you

          6  have, other than what I spoke here, but I had a very

          7  -- I'm professional supervisor, and I think that

          8  because of her input, I didn't receive this

          9  promotion.

         10                 However, one month after I was denied

         11  this promotion, her supervisory responsibilities

         12  were taken away from her, conveniently.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Interesting.

         14                 And, again, I would think that you

         15  would all agree that if the One-In-Three Rule

         16  provided a requirement for interviews that that

         17  might help the situation? If they got a chance to

         18  speak to you.

         19                 MS. MESSER: Well, personally I think

         20  they could -- I'm not as incensed about the not

         21  being interviewed part, as a lot of people seem to

         22  be.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.

         24                 MS. MESSER: Because certainly someone

         25  can sit across the table from you and go through the
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          2  motions of interviewing and mean nothing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right.

          4                 MS. MESSER: But in the very least, if

          5  you're going to be told that you were considered for

          6  three positions and not selected, there should be

          7  three actual positions that can be shown to you on

          8  paper that you were considered for and the criteria

          9  that you were not qualified for those positions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You're not

         11  showing the positions, nor the criteria for those

         12  open positions?

         13                 MS. MESSER: Nothing. Nothing but a

         14  letter that states that you were considered and not

         15  selected, and that seems too easy to do.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Anything further

         17  you want to add?

         18                 MS. MESSER: Well, seeing that you

         19  asked the other people the question at the end.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: About

         21  suggestions.

         22                 MS. MESSER: I made some notes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Go ahead.

         24                 MS. MESSER: And besides that one that

         25  you should be given that information, obviously I
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          2  also think that you should be able to be restored to

          3  the list for consideration again before provisionals

          4  are hired in the title.

          5                 And then lastly, I see no reason why

          6  you shouldn't be put into a Citywide pool and, you

          7  know, and considered by other agencies who now have

          8  exhausted their own list and are hiring

          9  provisionally in the title.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes, that does

         11  seem to be a common suggestion.

         12                 Anything?

         13                 MS. CRONIN: Yes, I felt the same way.

         14  There should be some kind of a pool for those who

         15  have not been chosen --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right. Okay,

         17  thank you very much for your time and testimony

         18  today. We greatly appreciate it. Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 The last individual to give testimony

         21  today, Antoinette Zeitown. Okay, Antoinette, step

         22  forward.

         23                 MS. ZEITOWN: Yes, my name is

         24  Antoinette Zeitown. I work for New York City DOT for

         25  15 years.
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          2                 I want to make it short. I don't want

          3  to repeat myself, because most of my co-workers said

          4  everything I want to say, and also I have in the

          5  file that Mr. Robert give you. I explain everything

          6  about my situation.

          7                 But I came here to ask, if there is a

          8  vacant (sic) in my section and I am Associate Staff

          9  Analyst in the list, why they don't promote me if

         10  they have two vacancies and they did already

         11  paperwork for me and it was signed by my director,

         12  my supervisor and also the chief engineer that I

         13  work for. And when I ask the personnel coordinator,

         14  they told me the personnel should give them the okay

         15  to send the paperwork. So, I think this is not fair

         16  to let our hopes be very high for this promotion,

         17  and after we do the paperwork, it was signed by

         18  three people, then after that they kept it in the

         19  file on personnel and we don't hear anything about

         20  it anymore.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Ms. Zeitown, a

         22  question. Were you passed over, again, not given an

         23  interview?

         24                 MS. ZEITOWN: Yes. My name is not

         25  restored yet, and I never went to a pool for any
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          2  interview, nothing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And the

          4  restoration is a major issue, as we can hear it

          5  today, the restoration onto a list, if not that

          6  list, or a Citywide list, that seems to be a major

          7  issue and we keep hearing about this.

          8                 Again, the purpose of this hearing is

          9  to raise the common concerns that we're hearing

         10  today, and, obviously, also --

         11                 MS. ZEITOWN: I want to tell you a

         12  very important thing. This list is a promotion. It

         13  means if we are not picked up from our agency, we

         14  cannot get picked up from any agency because it's

         15  not an open competitive. So, the chance is very,

         16  very slim. If we are not picked up from our agency,

         17  nobody will. So, it's unfair for us to be not

         18  restoring the list again.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It is to an

         20  extent unfair. We are looking for fairness. Again,

         21  with the agencies' discretion, that the discretion

         22  that the agencies have, there is a possibility of

         23  impropriety, or a possibility that the agencies are

         24  obviously not using the best discretion and that's

         25  going to be considered in the near future.
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          2                 MS. ZEITOWN: And also in our section,

          3  if we have a vacancy, why they don't give us a

          4  promotion for those vacancies.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. Thank you

          6  very much, Antoinette. I appreciate you being here.

          7                 Ladies and gentlemen, I appreciate

          8  all those that have given testimony today and being

          9  part of the record. Again, this is the first step in

         10  evaluating the One-In-Three Rule.

         11                 We will await the report or the

         12  audits on DCAS and, again, we will try and get that

         13  information back to you, and you will be notified of

         14  a future hearing regarding the One-In-Three Rule.

         15                 If you feel the One-In-Three Rule can

         16  be amended to, again, improve our City's workforce,

         17  and we heard the word "productivity," if we can

         18  improve the workforce, thus improving productivity,

         19  worker morale, that will be something that we are

         20  hopeful that this Committee can be helped with in

         21  the end result.

         22                 So, you will be apprised of that in

         23  future hearings. But, again, I do appreciate your

         24  time and testimony being here today. Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 The Committee for Civil Service and

          3  Labor is hereby adjourned. Have a great day,

          4  everyone. Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 3:42 p.m.)
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          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified
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